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Depnrtmefit of Traiuportation

William Cass, RE.

Commissioner

THE STA TE OE NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA TION

David Rodrigue, P.E.
Assistant Commissioner

Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF (RET)

Deputy Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council September 21, 2023

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT) to pay an amount not to exceed
$1,278,704 to Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH (Vendor 177511) to renovate property
located at 148 John Stark Highway, Newport, NH 03773, effective upon Governor and Council approval
through June 30, 2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the Fiscal Year 2024:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2024

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $ 1,278,704

EXPLANATION

The NHDOT approved a request for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 Bus & Bus
Facility Program funding from Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (SCS). The funding will support
SCS in the renovation of the property and building located at 148 John Stark Highway in Newport, NH
from an auto repair shop to an ADA-accessible transit facility. This project will allow SCS to house its
transit vehicles, maintenance equipment, offices, and staff, as well as enhance and expand public
transportation services to Sullivan County. SCS is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural
public transportation in the Sullivan County region of New Hampshire. Of note, at the February 16, 2022,
Governor & Council meeting, item #47 was approved for SCS to purchase the property located at 148
John Stark Highway. Whereas that approved agreement provided $220,000 of FTA Section 5339 Bus and
Bus Facility Program Funding to purchase the property, this subject agreement will provide FTA funds to
renovate the property as noted above.

NHDOT released a public notice on September 27, 2022, announcing the availability of funding from the
FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program. NHDOT solicited proposals from public transit
agencies and private non-profit organizations engaged in public transportation services. Five (5) transit
agencies (Advance Transit, Inc. (AT), Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County
(CAPBMCI), Southwestern Community Services (SCS), Tri-County Community Action Program
(TCCAP), and Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST)) applied by the November 21,
2022, deadline, and all were awarded funds for eligible projects.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483

TELEPHONE; (603) 271-3734 • FAX: (603) 271-3914 • TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 •WWW.NHDOT.COM



A project evaluation committee consisting of three (3) Department staff from the NHDOT Bureau of Rail
and Transit reviewed and scored the 5339 applications submitted for projects. The evaluation committee
members included the Public Transportation Administrator (Frederick Butler), Transportation Specialist
(Michael Pouliot), and Transit Grants Coordinator (Paula Devens). Each reviewer evaluated and scored
applications based on the criteria indicated in the application materials. Every application met NHDOT's
criteria for inclusion in its public transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the
aforementioned transit systems. The evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for reference:

1
The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate the
service and conduct ongoing maintenance associated with this capital request.

20%

2

The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations and has a history of
compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New applicants must
demonstrate sufficient resources for compliance.

20%

3

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured
in ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New applicants must
demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

20%

4

The applicant conveys how this addresses a critical public transportation need.
Applicants need to adequately illustrate how the project will benefit the agency's
transportation program/services, including how it is necessary for continued and/or
improved operations. (As replacement vehicles/equipment are prioritized, detailed
information is especially important for expansion projects. Vehicle replacements are
presumed to address needs.)

25%

5

The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and
otherwise, on the part of citizens and local govemment, e.g., letters of support,
willingness to provide local match above the minimum required, etc. (Vehicle
replacements are presumed to have such support.)

15%

Total Scoring 100%

Transit System Score Status

Advance Transit

(30) Bus-mounted bicycle racks - replacements 86.2% Awarded

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack County

ITS equipment base CAD/AVL + Real-Time System + AVA- Expansion 79.3% Pending*

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack County

(1) ADA Small Cutaway 16-passenger - replacement bus 84.2% Awarded

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack County

(1) ADA Small Cutaway 12-passenger- replacement bus 84.2% Awarded

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation

(1) ADA Low-floor cutaway 14x2-passenger - replacement bus 91.8% Awarded

Southwestern Community Services



Transit facility renovation - expansion 73.3% Awarded

Southwestern Community Services

Dispatch and technical systems upgrade - expansion 68.2% Pending*

Southwestern Community Services

(3) ADA Small Cutaway 12-passenger - replacement buses 83.5% Awarded

Tri-County Community Action Program

Telephone system upgrade - replacement 75.5% Awarded

Tri-County Community Action Program

Internet system upgrade - replacement 74.7% Awarded

Tri-County Community Action Program

(1) ADA Small Cutaway 9x3-passenger - replacement bus 74.7% Awarded

*These projects are pending approval of final project specifications.

The total project cost is estimated at $1,598,380, which includes $1,278,704 (80%) FTA Section 5339
funds and $319,676 (20%) Agency match. This contract reflects only the federal portion of the project for
a maximum contract amount of $1,278,704. SCS will complete the renovation project following federal
procurement guidelines. SCS will pay the contractors/vendor(s) for eligible project costs and will submit
invoices to the Department for the federal portion.

In the event that Federal Funds are unavailable. General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

This agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. The Department has
verified that the necessary funds are available. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on file at the
Secretary of State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services Office, and subsequent to
Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Attachments

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.
Commissioner



FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 11/2021)

Subject: SFY 2023 FTA Section 5339

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identmcation and Definitions.

1.1. Slate Agency Name

NH Department of Transportation

1.2. State Agency Address

PO Box 483 & Hazen Dr. Concord. NH
03302-0483

1.3. Grantee Name

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

1.4. Grantee Address

6 Kinney Place Claremont, NH 03743-3748

1.5 Grantee Phone #

603-542-9609

1.6. Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-0

72-500575

1.7. Completion Date

June 30, 2025

1.8. Grant Limitation

$1,278,704

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Frederick Butler. Public Transportation Administrator,
Bureau of Rail & Transit

1.10. Stale Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing Ihis furni we certify that we have complied with
any pubiic meetins requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:9S-b."

1.11. Grantee Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1

6c/6 Dari!ef^,C.£0
Grantee Signature 2

N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

N/A

Grantee Signature 3

N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

N/A

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifG & C approval required)

By: Assistant Attorney General, On: lO >02-3

1 .16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On:

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant fluids provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block I. I (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee identified in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to
as "the Project").
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall pcrfonn the Project in. and with respect to. the State of New
Hampshire. 9.2.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder. shall become
effective on the dale on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirely prior to the date in
block 1.7 (.hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOOnT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:
PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C. 9.5.
attached hereto.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C. 10.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C. and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the Stale, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold front ihe amount otheiwise

payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
pemtitted. to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the Stale of the Oant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incuned by the
Grantee in the perfonttance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete. 11.
compensation to (he Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabilities to I I.l.
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount.

Nulwilhslanding anything in this Agreement to Ihe contrary, and notwithstanding 1 1.1.1
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized. 1 1.1.2
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Gram limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 1 1.1.3
these general provisions. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.2.

connection with the perfonnance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal 11.2.1
uulhoriiies which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including
the acquisition of any and all ticccssary permits and RSA 3 l-95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years afler the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant (enns or (he Agency, (he (jrantee 1 1.2.2
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the
Project, including, but not limited to. costs of administration, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion 1 1.2.3
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant tenns or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1. at any time during the Grantee's nonna! business hours, and as 1 1.2.4
often as the Stale shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all

records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall 12.
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.1.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that
lenn is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL. 12.2.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perfonn
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws. 12.3.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not peimii any subcontractor, subgrantee.
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hereunder. the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final. 13.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

/Vs used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all tnrormaiion and things
developed or obtained during the perfomiance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recoidings. video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and

documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
the State, or any person designated by it. unrestricted access to all daf "x
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for an)
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any propeny which has been received
from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under (his
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the Stale
upon demand or upon termination of thus Agreement for any rea.son. whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use. in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwiihstanding anything in
this Agreemeni to the contrary, all obligations of the Stale hereunder. including,
without limitation. Ihe continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall (he State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In (he event of a reduction or tcmiination of those funds, the State shall
ha%'e the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
shall have the right to temiinate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of (he following acts or omissions of Ihe Grantee shall consiiiute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafler referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform the Project saiisfaciorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to mainuin. or permit access to. the records required hereunder; or
Failure lu perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence ufany Event of Default, the State may take anyone, or more,
or all. of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of (he notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspen'''*»q
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during (he p<.. .j
from the date of such notice until such time as the State detennines that the

Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages
(he Slate suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
perfonned, and (he Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of tennination.
in the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, (he approval of such a Termination Report by the Stale shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Gram amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Tennination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwiihstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or.
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may icnninate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the goveming body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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14.

IS.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the perfonmnce of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the Sute nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise tiansfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State.

INDE.MNIFICation. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold
hamtless the State, its officers and employees, frotn and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties assened against the State, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of. based on, resulting from, arising out
of (or which maybe claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the Grantee
or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign imntunity of the State, which inununily is hereby reserved to
the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement,
INSURANCE.

lite Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than SI.OOU.OOO per occurrence and S2,000.U00
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and SSOU.UOO for property
damage in any one incident; and

17.2.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

2.1.

24.

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the standard
fomt employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized lodo business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the State, certificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard
to that Event, or any Subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a vraiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United Stales Post Office addressed to (he parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall
be construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to (he benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in dctemtining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS, '{"he additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A Special Provisions

EXHIBIT B Scope of Services

EXHIBIT C Budget

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

2 CFR Part 200

FTA Federal Clauses

A&E

Construction

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



Revised 03/15/2023

SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES, INC.
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.I. Amend G-l Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the following:

2.1. The Grantee may change services only with the prior written agreement of the State and in
accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend G-l Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS;

PAYMENT" by adding the following:

5.6. As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the Grantee
shall not exceed the Federal share of project costs as identified in Exhibit C. Upon request by
the State, the Grantee shall provide and document the availability of local funds sufficient to
meet the project cost in excess of the Grant Price Limitation.

5.7. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State on
a monthly or quarterly basis, together with all information to support the request. Such requests
for payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be for
allowable costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for advance payment will be

accepted by the State.

5.8. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section 7.

5.9. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing
to the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

5.10. Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by this
Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month or portion
thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of the State and
Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained and withheld
pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this Agreement and
resolution of all pending matters.

A.3. Amend G-l Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS" by adding the following:

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified

applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age, creed,
sex, or national origin.

6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to the local administration of this agreement and any
subgrantee under this agreement.

6.4. The Grantee agrees to comply with and ensure compliance by any subgrantees, or consultants.



Revised 08/15/2023

with all federal and state laws, rules, regulations, and policies as applicable, including but not
limited to:

6.4.1. Third-Party Procurement Guidelines. The Grantee shall comply with the Uniform
Administrative Requirements 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1F or as amended.

6.4.2. The Grantee will follow FTA Circular 4220.IF, as amended, which requires the
procurement of Architect and Engineer Services (A&E) be in accordance with the
"qualifications-based procurement methods" of the Brooks Act as defined in 40 U.S.C.
Section 1102 and 49 U.S.C. Section 5325 (b), as amended.

6.4.3. The Grantee will ensure that professional services other than architectural and engineering
services are obtained through sealed bids, competitive proposals, or (as the Grant value
warrants) small purchase or micro-purchase procedures in accordance with FTA
procurement requirements.

6.4.4. National Environmental Policy Act. This includes documentation needed to support the
FTA environmental classification of the project as applicable.

6.4.5. Prevailing Wages. The Grantee shall pay subgrantees prevailing building wages in
accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act and shall ensure the requirement is incorporated into
any lower-tier agreements.

6.4.6. Certified Payrolls. The Grantee shall submit certified payrolls on a weekly basis using a
form and instructions provided or otherwise specified by NHDOT's Office of Access,
Opportunity, and Compliance (OAOC). The current form is WHD-347.

6.4.7. Subcontract Approval. The Grantee shall seek subcontracting approval from OAOC as
detailed in Section 12.4.

6.4.8. Bulletin Board. The Grantee shall ensure that during the construction phase of the project,
a Bulletin Board with the necessary labor posters is posted in a conspicuous location for
all working on the project to review.

6.4.10. Prompt Payment. The Grantee shall submit invoices to the State for the Federal share of
the amounts to be paid by the Grantee to subgrantees for the performance of the work set
forth herein and certify that the invoices properly represent payment for completed work.

6.4.11. The Grantee shall abide by NHDOT Prompt Payment requirements to sub-grantees and/or
material suppliers, which requires (all tiers) to pay their subgrantees/materia!
supplier/consultants for the satisfactory work performed no later than twenty-one (21)
calends days from the date the Grantee receives the payment from NHDOT, or the
applicable subgrantee receives payment from the Grantee.

6.4.12. The Grantee and its applicable subgrantee/contractors shall report their payments using a
form and instructions provided or otherwise specified by NHDOT's OAOC and submit it
to OAOC no later than the 10'^ day of each month. The current form is OAOC Form 12.

6.5. General Federal requirements. The Grantee shall comply with the provisions outlined in the
FTA's Annual Certifications and Assurances, Master Agreements, Federal Circulars, Federal
Clauses, and all other applicable federal laws.

6.5.1. The Grantee shall require all contracts/subcontracts to include notifications of the Federal
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Clauses (and as amended), including certificates for Lobbying and Debarment, outlined in
the Federal Clauses attached herein.

6.5.2. The Grantee shall have NHDOT OAOC review facility plans to ensure ADA requirements
and accessibility are being addressed and met.

6.6. In the event of any conflict between the requirements within this Exhibit related to Federal
requirements and Federal Clauses incorporated elsewhere into this Agreement, the Federal
Clauses take precedence.

A.4. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following:

12.5. The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee which,
by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the completion of
the Services and upon payment of the Grant Price,, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the parties hereto.

12.7. Termination; Liability. In the event of termination under Section 4 or 10.4 of this Agreement,
the acceptance of a Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve the Grantee from
any and all liability for damages sustained or incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's
breach of its obligations hereunder, including a refund of any federal funds required by FTA in
C 5010.1 E (Pg. lV-17 Real Estate Disposition C 5010.1 E) or as amended.

12.8; Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the
Grantee may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days' written notice.

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the following:

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
agreement:

9.6.1 Except for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to do so,
without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to use,
for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement, subgrant,
or third party grant, irrespective of whether a copyright has been obtained; and any rights
of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor purch^es
ownership with Federal assistance.

9.6.3. It is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.6 (b) above, FTA
may make available to any recipient, subgrantee, grantee, or subgrantee its license in the
copyright to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced
under this Agreement.

9.7. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Slate and United States, their officers.
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agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation of the
proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation,
reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.8. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to. the United States under any patent or
be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United
States under any patent.

9.9. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the
State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement; provided
that such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.10. In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project
shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or FTA
may direct.

A.6. Amend G-l Section 15. "ASSIGNMENTS/ SUBGRANTEES" by adding the following:

15.1. The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants/subcontracts
for any work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each
subgrantee; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for
standard commercial supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect
to any subcontract as the State may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including
sanctions for noncompliance. The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee has obtained all
licenses, permits, or approvals required for the performance of grant services.

15.2. The following provisions apply for any agreements entered into by the Grantee:

15.2.1. The Grantee, as a sub-recipient of FTA funding, shall be responsible for
contractor/subcontractor compliance with Federal, State, and local requirements. This
includes but is not limited to, ensuring that applicable Federal Clauses are incorporated
into any agreements.

15.2.2. Written approval by NHDOT's OAOC is required prior to entering into any
contractor/subcontractor agreements. Agreements involving construction activities require
written approval by OAOC prior to the advertisement and will require that wages be
determined and outlined therein.

15.2.3. Any contracts/subcontracts involving $2,500 or more of construction activities shall
include provisions to ensure compliance with prevailing wages per Davis-Bacon
requirements.

15.2.4. As applicable, certified payrolls shall be submitted to.OAOC on a weekly basis, or as
otherwise directed by OAOC, on a form specified by OAOC.

15.2.5. As applicable based on Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) requirements, certified
payrolls shall be submitted to OAOC by the 10"^ of each month, or as otherwise directed
by OAOC.

15.2.6. Buy America provisions apply to any construction agreements in excess of $150,000.

15.2.7. At the discretion of OAOC, the Grantee, and any contractors/subcontractors participating
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in this project, may be required to attend OAOC-sponsored contractor compliance training
courses.

A.7. Amend G-1 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services described in
Exhibit B and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

EQUIPMENT: An article of nonexpendable, tangible personal having a useful life of more than
one year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalization level
established by the governmental unit for financial statement purposes, or $5,000. Includes rolling
stock and all other such property used in the provision of public transit services.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures, and/or maps submitted to the State
detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grant as modified and approved
by the State.

REAL PROPERTY: Land, including affixed land improvements, structures, and
appurtenances. It does not include movable machinery and equipment.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation services
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from Grants, purchase of service
agreements, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the transportation service.

SECTION 5339: FTA's Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program of Moving Ahead for Progress
in the 2P' Century Act (Map-21) of 2012, as amended.

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit.

USEFUL LIFE: Useful life is determined by years of service or accumulation of miles
whichever comes first, by asset type as referenced in the SMP.

A.8. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Ledgers. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each budget
category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the Grantee. The ledger
sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will indicate the funds remaining in
each line item of the Grant Budget at the beginning of each month. Entries shall be made on a
running basis and carried over to the following month; that is, figures will be brought forward
cumulatively. Grantee shall also prepare and submit to the State a profit and loss statement
quarterly if such information is not provided with invoices.

26.2. Accounts Receivable. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Grantee shall prepare and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall credit all
revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall establish and
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maintain an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appearing in the Ledger shall
correspond to the receipt voucher number. A receipt voucher must be completed on a form
approved by the State and shall identify each component of every deposit. All appropriate
supporting documents for each deposit should be attached to the receipt voucher.

26.3. Payables. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures of
funds. The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form
approved by the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will be drawn,
the date of expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments
supporting the expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All invoices received
by the Grantee shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must be approved
for payment by the Grant Manager or designee. Immediately upon payment, Grantee and/or
subcontractor shall make entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each
subcontractor shall identify a Contract Manager).

26.4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain two
registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers will
provide a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount, and purpose of action. No self-
designated abbreviations are to be used.

26.5. Check Register. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall maintain a check register. This register is
also considered a book of original entries and is posted to the ledger immediately.

26.6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall require each of its
employees to I) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent on such
work, or 2) be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the cognizant Federal
agency. The Grantee shall summarize time reports by task and apply the employee's rates of pay
to the hours worked. The Grant Manager shall review completed and signed time reports and
cause them to be posted to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Grantee shall
maintain records of employee payroll and benefits and shall post this information to the
appropriate category in the general ledger. The Grant Manager shall ensure that all payments are
on a timely basis.

26.7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Grantee shall submit a description of Grant activities,
in a format as required by the State. Should the Grantee show a profit for any month, the Grantee
shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement requests. The Grantee shall
agree to provide information in addition to the monthly narrative at such times and in such manner
as the State may require, and to prepare any reports which may be requested by the State including
but not limited to a final or termination report if operations cease.

26.8. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years affer the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee
shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to complaints and
comments received from the public. In the event, the State disputes the Grantee's operations or
records as submitted for payment or otherwise, the final resolution shall rest with the State.

26.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period
of three (3) years affer the FTA grant is closed or the date of the resolution of all matters relating
to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours,
and as often as the Stale or FTA may demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State and
FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee
shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits
of all grants, contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel. Data (as defined in G-
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1 section 9.1), and other information relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used
in this paragraph," Grantee " includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled
by, or under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.10. General Transit Feed Specification (GFTS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated
General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the

. National Transit Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the
Department upon request.

26.11. Independent Audit. The Grantee shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the project upon demand.
Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget for that specific
purpose.

26.1 1. i In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the Grantee,
for whatever reasons, the Grantee shall pay to the State such sums within thirty (30) days
of the audit date.

26.12. Reporting. The Grantee shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter
activity reports within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information,
or reports required by the State to complete the FTA's National Transit Database (NTD)
reporting.

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section 27;

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and conditions
apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds provided
through this or other Agreements between the State and the Grantee:

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.IF and
future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663.

27.2. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased by
the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

27.3. in the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become the
property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040.1G and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received
from the State, or most recent, and the State Management Plan and as outlined in A.4
'Termination".

A.IO. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of
all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit to the State a
certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.
The inventory listing and equipment certification shall be supplied to the State by each year,
generally by June 30'^.

A.I I. Amend G-1 by adding "REAL PROPERTY/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. REAL PROPERTY/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be responsible for
the maintenance and repair of all real property and equipment used in the service described in
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Exhibit B. The Grantee shall maintain all such property/equipment at a high level .of cleanliness,
safety, and mechanical soundness. The Grantee shall certify that a proper maintenance plan that
meets or exceeds the original equipment manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is
followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must be approved by the Board of Directors. All
maintenance, repair, and physical improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by
the Grantee and at a location specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any
changes in this location. The Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical
improvement to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA, and/or their designees shall
have the right to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance
and repair.

A.12. Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 30:

30. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this grant, which invention,
improvement, or discovery may_be patentable under the laws of the United States or any foreign
country, the Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. The rights
and responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,
and any waiver thereof.

A.I3. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 31:

31. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee,
to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the
award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have
the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the
Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

A.14. Amend C-1 by udding "REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS" us Seclion 32;

32. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Grantee shall maintain a complete and up-to-date
record of all real property and equipment and shall make such records available to the State and
FTA upon demand.

A.15. Amend G-1 by adding "GRANT REPRESENTATIONS" as Section 33:

33. GRANT REPRESENTATIONS. Grantee warrants that with respect to the Services to be
performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are required by any law,
order, or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for the
performance of the Services hereunder. The Grantee warrants that alt personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such Services and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Services under all applicable laws.

A.I6. Amend G-1 by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as Section 34:

34. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Grantee agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of the Unified
Protective Arrangement, Section 5333(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated herein for
the protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services assisted by
this Agreement, and the employees of any other surface transportation providers in the
transportation service area identified in Exhibit B.



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

B.I. REAL PROPERTY RENOVATION

1.1 The Grantee will renovate the real property located at 148 John Stark Highway, Newport, NH
03773 (hereinafter the "Property") in accordance with Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program requirements for the purpose of utilizing the
Property as a primary base of operations, maintenance, and dispatching related to public
transit/human transportation services in the greater Sullivan County region.

1.2 DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES of the Grantee shall include, but not be limited to:

1.2.1 Completing and submitting to the State for approval a Request for Qualifications (RFQ)
that will detail the renovation scope and related tasks to be completed.

1.2.1.1 Upon receiving a Notice to Proceed from the State, issuing the RFQ.

1.2.1.1.1 The Grantee shall issue the RFQ to at least one Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (DBE) as listed in the State's DBE directory.

1.2.2 Managing the procurements, design, construction, and maintenance of the Project. The Grantee
may, with prior written State approval, utilize a subgrantee/subcontractor for any aspect related
to the Project but shall retain ultimate responsibility.

1.2.3 Developing, maintaining, and adhering to a Project Management Plan (PMP) in accordance
with the FTA Construction Management Handbook 2016, as amended, to manage the Project's
scope, budget, schedule, quality, and safety throughout all phases of the Project, including
procurement, design, nnd construction.

1.2.3.1 The Grantee shall provide the PMP to the State within thirty (30) days from the approved
Grant and shall seek written approval from the State to amend the PMP.

1.2.4 Submitting a monthly PMP report to the State that includes but is not limited to:

1.2.4.1 Progress of the Project with respect to the planned tasks, schedule, and budget.

1.2.4.2 Delays, concerns, and/or risks to the Project and recommendations to address the items.

1.2.4.3 Change Orders for the Project and any associated impact on the schedule or budget.

1.2.4.4 At its discretion, the State may require an action plan to be submitted by the Grantee to
address any Project delays. Failure to reasonably address delays may, at the State's
discretion, result in payments being withheld until remedied to the State's satisfaction.

1.2.5 Providing the Project manager and other identified personnel as needed and identified in the
PMP to effectively manage the Project so that it remains on schedule, within budget, and within
scope barring unforeseen issues.

1.2.5.1 The Grantee's Project Manager and Project Administrator, at a minimum, shall complete
State training and certifications, including but not limited to: Local Public Agency (LPA)
Training and Certification Process, Labor Compliance Certification, and Contractor
Compliance Training. The Grantee shall complete this training before proceeding to the



construction phase of the Project unless otherwise approved in writing by the State.

1.2.6 Maintaining all source Project documents in accordance with FTA C 5010.IE. Pu. 11 1-21.
Section 7. and as amended.

1.2.7 Maintaining the real property for the intended purpose for the duration of the useful life of the
property or until disposal, if later, in accordance with Federal requirements. The Grantee may
submit grant applications in the future to the State for additional funding to assist with related
facility maintenance and repairs, and/or additional renovations.

1.2.8 Developing and following a facilities maintenance plan that shall describe a system of periodic
inspections and preventative maintenance to be performed at certain defined intervals for
specific mission-critical and safety items such as, but not limited to:

i. Buildings
ii. Elevators

iii. Parking lots

iv. Plumbing and electrical systems
V. Overhead doors

vi. Vehicle washers

vii. Heating and Air-conditioning

1.2.9 Developing and following a system for tracking warranty issues and pursuing warranty claims.

1.2.10 Annually completing a Facility Condition Assessment on a form and per instructions provided
by the State and in accordance with the FTA.

1.2.11 Preventing any encroachments upon the property upon completion of the Project herein
contemplated.

1 .2, 1 ? Providing qimlit)' control and qiialif>' assurance for the Project from development to closeout
and maintenance, and being responsible to ensure all parties, including the Grantee,> working
on the Project follow all the Federal requirements. The Grantee is the primary responsible party
for providing oversight and monitoring of the other parties who provided work on this Project.
The Grantee shall review all documents for Federal compliance before submitting them to the
State.

1.2.13 Adhering to the Special Provisions set forth in Exhibit A.

1.3 The DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES of the State shall be:

1.3.1 Reviewing the Project's development and any pertinent Grant documents for applicability
of the FTA and State requirements for a federally funded Project.

1.4 It is further understood and agreed between the State and the Grantee:

1.4.1 That the Grantee agrees to commence the Project within three (3) months after the date of
the Notice to Proceed and complete the Project no later than the Completion Date per
Section 1.7 of the Grant Agreement (G-1). Failure to meet either deadline without good
cause may cancel the State's participation in this Project, at the discretion of the Slate. Any
remaining funds will be forfeited. The Grantee is responsible for informing the State if any
condition arises that may result in either deadline being violated.

1.4.2 As applicable, the Grantee shall submit a Cost Allocation plan to the State for approval
covering all uses of the facility not covered by a program administered by the FTA. The



plan shall assess fair market values for space used for other than FTA program purposes
per FTA incidental use requirements. The Grantee agrees to review, update, and resubmit
the plan every three years for approval by the State.

1.4.3 The Grantee may submit a written request to the State to modify the type and/or quantity
of capital purchases and/or the renovations detailed in the scope and budget, provided that
said changes are within the Grant budget amount. Said written request must contain
sufficient details to support and substantiate the requested change(s). Within 30 days of
receipt of the Grantee's written request, the State will provide a written decision to the
Grantee as to whether approval is granted.

1.4.4 The State will provide oversight in the form of onsite and desk compliance reviews to
ensure federal/state compliance, including but not limited to Property maintenance, and
overall asset management for the duration of the Project and the lifetime of the Grantee's
ownership of the Property.



C.l

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES INC.
EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

The Grant price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, are FTA Section 5339
program portions of the eligible project costs. Federal funds are granted as follows:

FTA Section 5339
Estimated Total

Project Costs

Federal

(FTA 5339)

.. State

Match

Local

Agency

New transit facility

renovation $1,598,380 $1,278,704 $0 $319,676

Total Funding $1,598,380 $1,278,704 $0 $319,676

Total Grant Funds $1,278,704

1.1 Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations.

1.2 The Grant will provide funding through the State, from the FTA Section 5339 Bus and
Bus Facilities Program, for the Federal portion (generally 80% but may vary based on
the Federal share of project costs) of the cost related to the project as detailed in the
table above, not to exceed $1,278,704 Federal funding. The Grantee will pay the non-
federal match, estimated at 20% or $319,676, for a total estimated project cost of
$1,598,380.

C.2 Pre-approval of any procurement is required by the State as detailed in Exhibit B.

C.3 As applicable, the Grantee may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting
individual invoices for completed milestones and/or deliverables relating to the Scope of
Services as outlined in Exhibit B. Requests shall be monthly or less frequent.

C.4 The invoice(s) must include verification of source(s) of matching funds.



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

SERVICES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 19, 1965.

1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number: 0006194063

O

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Kevin Watterson hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Corporation/LLC)

llama duly elected Cierk/Secretary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services Inc. '
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 18 2021 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Beth Daniels. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirabie or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) Hsted above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To tl^ extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts withyfn^ State ol^New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. / j

Dated: 8/21/2023

agnature of Elected Officer
fjame; Kevin Watterson
Title: Chairperson

Rev. 03/24/20



jXCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DDmrYY)

06/27/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

''ORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
iUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementjs).
PRODUCER

The Hiib Group New England. LLC

PC Box 606

Keene NH 03431

coj{|*CT Ana G'Donneil, CPiW, CIC

PHONE FAX(^. No. Extl: (A/C. No):
ACCESS-

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co 18058

INSURED

Southwestern Community Services Inc.

63 Community Way

PC Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B
Granite State Healthcare & Human Services Trust

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23/24 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
xrar

INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER
POnCYEFF

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP
IMM/OO/YYYYl LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

□AmAg^ to reNted
PREMISES (Ea oceufrflnea)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PHPK2571652 06/30/2023 01/01/2024 PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GEN\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

X POLICY LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

PROFESSIONAL

1,000,000

100.000

5.000

1.000.000

2.000,000

2,000,000

1M/2M

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accideni) 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2571655 06/30/2023 01/01/2024 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accideni)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 2.000.000

PHUB870401 06/30/2023 01/01/2024 AGGREGATE 2.000.000

DED X RETENTION S "10-000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
ANO EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
li vas, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

X
Y/N

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

HCHS20232000036 04/01/2023 01/01/2024 E,L EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached II more space Is required)

3a State: NH. All officers included. This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate
does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies referenced herein.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Transportation Bureau of Rail & Tr

PC Box 483

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord NH 03302

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
(S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



C::cn-irica(ions and Assurnnccs Fiscal Year 2023

l-KDKRAL KISCAl. ̂ H:AR 2023 CKR'UKICA TIONS AM) ASSUKANCKS FOR Fl A

assistancf programs

(Sicnaiurc paues aliernaie to providing Ccrii iicmicMis aiul Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name oi" Applicant:

The Appiicani eenlfics to the applicable provisions of all categories: ivhcck here) ^

Or.

Tiic Applicant cenihcs lu the applicable provisions ofthc categories il has selected:

Catcgon- Cfrtitlcation

01 (."eriirications and Assurances Required ol'Fvery Applicant

02 Public Transporttiiion Agency Safety lOans

03 Tax Liability and Felony (."onviciions

04 Lobbying

05 lU-ivaic Sceior Proiecti(.>n.v

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

Oi'> Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Fonnuia (iianis for Rural Arcai

10 Fixed Cfuideway Gapiia! Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital lincsiment Grinis Pilot Program

I  I Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission

Yeliicle Deployment Grant Programs



Ccn.iricuiions ;ind Assurances l-iscal \car-2(>2-3

12 iiniianccd Mobiliiy of Seniors and individuals with Disabiliiics
Programs

13 Slalc ofClood Rcitair Grants

14 !n!Va.sin!eiure Finance Prcigrarns

15 Alcoiiol and Gonirollcd Substances Icsling

16 Rail Safety Training and 0\ersighi

1 7 Demand Responsi\'e Service

1 Interest ajid l-inancing Costs

D) Cyberseciiriiy Certillcaiion for Rail Roiling Slock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

2 I Trnergcncy Relief Program

CKKTIFICA HONS AM) A.SSLKANCKS SIGNaTI.RK PACK

AKKIUMATtON Ol" AiM'lJf \NT

Nnnic or'tho App!ic:uif .J

BY StCjN'IN'fj RI'1,0\V, on Iv'uli' di' ihio Applicc\in. ! itcclatc llv.u it lus duly uvuhuri/vd nic to iItcsc

(■onil'iciiiions ;iiv1 ANSiir.incc> anil hind ii-; coiiipliaiu-e Ttius. ii agiX'c.; to coniply all Icdcrat t:ivv <, ri'n.iilaiiiui>-.
mill icquM'cinciKS. h>|i.iw iip|)in.;itTk' fcdcia! iand;mi:c. uikI Liiimdy vv'iili ihi; C'eifilicaliiiii> :iiii! A>;^ui"tiiccs as
tikiicaicd un the luiCiiniiiji pii^c .ipptiiiahlc tc encli appliLatiuii its /\utliifn^cil KcpiX'st-'niaiivt; iitakcs lu il:c I'ciicral
rnmsii Xdiiiimsrraiiiin (KTA) in the icditnii fiscal yciif. irrespective nrvvhciiicr ilic individiial lltai acital i*n tii-< nt
Ikt Applivaiil'> h'jiialI c>."ii)niic>' tn iiTpiirst nt n

Ttic Ccrtitlcalions anti Assuianoc.s ilic Applicant selects apply to cacii Awaid tni •s'hictt it now seeks, or may
later seek ledcrui assistance to lu- auaided by I'T.A during tlie Jedcial tiscai yeai

The Applicant al't'inns tiic imiiiAtlnc.s> and accitrncy ol the Certitkopous and Assurances if Ita.s seiecicd in the
statcmcrits .submitted with tins di)Ciii)icm ami any otficr suhiiii.ssion inaitc to i-T.A, aivJ acknowleduc.t (hat the
I'loiirani Fraud L'tvil Keincdies Aci oi lyso. s I U.."S t' A SMU I'/.-ery.. lux.l iinpienieniiiig L'.S DO T rcyulatinn.s,
"i-'rograin Fraiul Civ il Kctncdics." CFlt part I , apply to any tciiincutii>ii, a.isiiiiince or svihniis.iion inade to
rr.A. "I'hc cnniinal piovisiim.s of IS 1 '.S.C. j 1001 apfiiy to any Lcnincution. a,^>llr^l(K•e. oi .siihniissinn jiiatie in
eiiimcetion with a !cclcial public tnni-sportaiinn program anlln.ii i/eil b;. d9 C.S (' ehapier 5't or any nilier statute



CcTlificuiions itnd Assiiranccs Msca! Vcar 202-3--■

III -Niumn'j liiK do^uinctu, I ilcclarc imilcr pi-niiliiL'S iif p'-'ijuiv iliiii. ilu; ibioaxinL' i 'criifk-ain-ii^ ami Asaiiaiii.iv: atiii
;mv .mIkt Nlalriinaii % m.Kic In nn: on hchnh'of (lie Apoiicani aiv iriiv; and accuraii.-

SivLdaluic i>af-j

Name (X.0 ( f (-S ^ ^ .^0 xu'fiurized He|ii\r.iem.tii%c oi Appheam



FFY 2022 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master

Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

1 acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2022 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

LdffmjnduJtAMCU.J/ie. OOjStlfS^
Name of,Agency ^ Date

PidhDmifls lEO
Name of Authorized Official Signature
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name ofAwarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient/Contracting Agency: Southwestern Community Services

Southwestern Community Services, shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations,
and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and Federal.Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $1,278,704.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.526
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5339 BUS & BUS FACILITIES PROGRAM

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2022-014-1

Federal Award Date: TED

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

Email: Michelle.L.Winters@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-1484
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient/Contractor Information:

Subrecipient/Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services

Subrecipient/Contractor SAM.GOV I.D.: HMUUXK.8MBJC3

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Beth Daniels
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: CEO

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: 12%
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient/contractor and the Federal
Government or. ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimi's indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (FAA) costs,
paragraph (ft).

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: TBD End Date: 6/30/23



DCt
tifTrmuiftitni'utn

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action {contract/amendment}:

For FFY; 2023 Section: 5339 Amount: $1.278.704.00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrec'wient (orieina! contract & amendmentsh

For FFY; 2023 Section: 5339 Amount: $1,278,704.00

Pass-through requirements:

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Southwestern Community Services agrees to meet all requirement
Imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statues, regulations and the terms arid conditions of the'Federal
award.

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Southwestern Community Services agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet Its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The Subrecipient/Contractor. Southwestern Community Services agrees to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial
statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date:

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Beth Daniels

Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: lOmuh j



Southwestern Community Services

Architectural & Engineering

$ 200,000

Request for Qualirication (RFQ)

Vi

Paula Bennett New Hampshire DOT

System.Web.UI.WebControls.TextBox 7 Hazen Drive
Concord, New Hampshire 03302-0483

(603)271-3734

https://www.nh.gov/dol/

rv",'.' •
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The following clauses are for inclusion into procurement documents, but can also be inserted into contractual agreements. However, additional clauses and
certification may be required for contractual agreements.



Federal Clauses

ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

a. Record Retenlion. The Contractor will retain, and will require its subcontractors of all tiers to retain, complete and readily accessible records related in .
whole or in part to the contract, including, but not limited to. data, documents, reports, statistics, leases, subcontracts, arrangements, other third party
Contracts of any type, and supporting materials related to those records.

b. Retention Period. The Contractor agrees to comply with the record retenlion requirements in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Contractor shall
maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of at not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or
expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case records shall
be maintained until the disposition of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

c. Access to Records. The Contractor agrees to provide sufficient access to FTA and its contractors to inspect and audit records and information related to
performance of this contract as reasonably may be required.

d. Access to the Sites of Performance. The Contractor agrees to permit FTA and its contractors access to the sites of performance under this contract as
reasonably may be required.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT(ADA)

The contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301 (d). which states the Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities
have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing
those services and facilities to implement that policy. The contractor also agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as amended. 29 U.S.C. § 794. which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, with the Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with
disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act. and with the Architectural Barriers act of 1968. as amended. 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq.,
which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act. In
addition, the contractor agrees to comply with any and all applicable requirements issued by the FTA. DOT, DGJ, U.S. GSA, U.S. EEOC, U.S. FCC. any
subsequent amendments thereto and any other nondiscriminatlon statute(s) that may apply to the Project.

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has
not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant,
or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with
obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Agency."

CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The following Federal Civil Rights laws and regulations apply to all contracts.

1 Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEC) Requirements.These include, but are not limited to:

a) Nondiscrimination in Federal Public Transportation Programs. 49 U.S.C. § 5332, covering projects, programs, and activities financed under 49 U.S.C.
Chapter 53, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, or
age, and prohibits discrimination in employment or business opportunity.

b) Prohibition against Employment Discrimination. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 2000e. and Executive Order No. 11246,
"Equal Employment Opportunity." September 24.1965, as amended, prohibit discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex. or
national origin.

2 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq. and implementing
Federal regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance." 49 C.F.R. part 25
prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

3 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age. The "Age Discrimination Act of 1975," as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., and Department of Health and
Human Services.implementing regulations. "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance." 45
C.F.R. part 90. prohibit discrimination by participants in federally assisted programs against individuals on the basis of age. The Age Discrimination in
Employment Act (ADEA), 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq.. and Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) implementing regulations. "Age Discrimination
in Employment Act." 29 C.F.R. part 1625. also prohibit employment discrimination against individuals age 40 and over on the basis of age.

4 Federal Protections for Individuals with Disabilities. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. as amended (ADA). 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq..
prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities in programs, activities, and services, and imposes specific requirements on public and
private entities. Third party contractors must comply with their responsibilities under Titles I, ii. III. IV. and V of the ADA in employment, public services, public
accommodations, telecommunications, and other provisions, many of which are subject to regulations issued by other Federal agencies.

Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity
The Agency is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the Agency agrees to comply with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and implementing
regulations. Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the Agency agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.r.
§ 5323(h) (3) by not using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. Under tf
Contract, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the following requirements and shall include these requirements in each subcontract entered into as
part thereof.

1. Nondiscrimination. In accordance with Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it vrill not discriminate against any employee
or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, or age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with



applicable Federal Implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

2. Race, Color, Religion, National Origin, Sex. In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act. as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., and Federal
transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of
Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations. "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor." 41 C.F.R. chapter
60, and Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity in Federal Employment," September 24.1965, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by
any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes It. referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note. Tbe Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure
t*"' applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, or sex (including

al orientation and gender identity). Such action shall include, but not be limited to. the following: employment, promotion, demotion or transfer.
rcvjTjitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination: rates of pay or other forms of compensation: and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

3. Age. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act. 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-634, U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S.
EEOC) regulations. "Age Discrimination in Employment Act," 29 C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 6101 el
seq., U.S. Health and Human Services regulations. "Nondiscriminalion on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial
Assistance," 45 C.F.R. part 90. and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and
prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any Implementing requirements FTA may issue.

4.Dlsabil]ties. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended. 29 U.S.C. § 794. the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.
as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., the Architectural Barriers Act of 1966, as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 4151 et seq., and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. §
5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against individuals on the basis of disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any
implementing requirements FTA may issue.

5.Promoting Free Speech and Religious Liberty. The Contractor shall ensure that Federal funding is expended in full accordance with the U.S.
Constitution, Federal Law. and statutory and public policy requirements: including, but not limited to, those protecting free speech, religious liberty, public
welfare, the environment, and prohibiting discrimination.

CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671q) and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to FTA and the Regional Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency. The following applies for contracts of amounts in excess of $150,000:

Clean Air Act

(1)The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act. as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 7401
et seq.

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Agency and understands and agrees that the Agency will, in turn, report each violation as required to
assure notification to the Agency. Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

he contractor agrees to include these requirements In each sulxontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance
provided by FTA.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. as
amended. 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Agency and understands and agrees that the Agency will, in turn, report each violation as required to
assure notification to the Agency. Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150.000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance
provided by FTA."



CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) projects shall conform to the National ITS Architecture and standards. Conformance with the National ITS
Architecture is interpreted to mean the use of the National ITS Architecture to develop a regional ITS architecture in support of Integration and the
subsequent adherence of all ITS projects to that regional ITS architecture. Development of the regional ITS architecture should be consistent with the
transportation planning process for Statewide and Metropolitan Transportation Planning (49 CFR Part 613 and 621).

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

a. Applicability; This requirement applies to all FTA grant and cooperative agreement programs for a contract In the amount of at least $25,000

(1)This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such the contractor is required to verify that none of the •
contractor, Its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or Its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or
disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).

(2) C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction It enters into.

(3) The accompanying certification Is a material representation of fact relied upon by the subrecipient. If it Is later determined that the contractor did not
comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180. subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, In addition to remedies available to the Agency and subrecipient, the Federal
Government may pursue available remedies, Including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

The bidder or proposer agrees, to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer Is valid and
throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in
its lower tier covered transactions."

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex In the performance of this contract. The contractor
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26 In the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out
these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result In the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the Agency deems
appropriate, which may Include, but Is not limited to:

(1) Withholding monthly progress payments: (2) Assessing sanctions; (3) Liquidated damages; and/or (4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as
non-responsible. 49 C.F.R. § 26.13(b).

Prime contractors are required to pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their contracts no later than 30 days from receipt of each payment the
Agency makes to the prime contractor. 49 C.F.R. § 26.29(a).

Finally, for contracts with defined DBE contract goals, each FTA Recipient must include in each prime contract a provision stating that the contractor shall
utilize the specific DBEs listed unless the contractor obtains the Agency's written consent; and that, unless the Agency's consent is provided, the contractor
shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material unless It Is performed or supplied by the listed DBE. 49 C.F.R. § 26.53(0 (1)-

It Is the policy of the Agency and the United States Department of Transportation ("DOT") that Dlsodvantogcd Business Enterprises ("DBE's"), as defined
herein and In the Federal regulations published at 49 C.F.R. part 26, shall have an equal opportunity to partclpate In DOT-assisted contracts.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency; which ore contained in tho state energy conservation
plan Issued In compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservatinn A'.--'.

FEDERAL CHANGES

49 CFR Part 18 Federal Changes - Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives. Including
without limitation those listed directly or by reference In the Master Agreement between Purchaser and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from
time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

FLY AMERICA

a) Definitions. As used in this clause—
1) "International air transportation" means transportation by air between a place In the United States and a place outside the United States or between two
places both of which are outside the United States. 2) "United States" means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and outlying areas. 3) "U.S.-ftag air
carrier" means an air carrier holding a certificate under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 411.

b) When Federal funds are used to fund travel. Section 5 of the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. 40118) (Fly
America Act) requires contractors, Agencys, and others use U.S.-flag air carriers for U.S. Government-financed International air transportation of personnel
(and their personal effects) or property, to the extent that service by those carriers is available. It requires the Comptroller General of the United States, in the
absence of satisfactory proof of the necessity for foreign-flag air transportation, to disallow expenditures from funds, appropriated or otherwise established
for the account of the United States, for international air transportation secured aboard a foreign-flag air carrier if a U.S.-flag air carrier is available to provide
such services.

c) If available, the Contractor, in performing work under this contract, shall use U.S.-flag carriers for international air transportation of personnel (and their
personal effects) or property.

d) in the event that the Contractor selects a carrier other than a U.S.-flag air carrier for intematlonal air transportation, the Contractor shall include a
statement on vouchers involving such transportation essentially as follows:

Statement of Unavailabilltv of U.S.-Flao Air Carriers

International air transportation of persons (and their personal effects) or property by U.S.-flag air carrier was not available or it was necessary to use foreign-
flag air carrier service for the following reasons. See FAR § 47.403. [State reasons]:



e) Contractor shall include the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (e), in each subcontract or purchase under this contract that may involve
international air transportation.

INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The provisions within include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT,
whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in the current FTA Circular

are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event
v  onflict with other provisions contained in this Contract. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any
request which would cause a violation of the FTA terms and conditions.



NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES

The Agency and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding''any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solidtaiion or
award of the underlying Contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this Contract and
shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Agency, Contractor or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any
matter resulting from the underlying Contract. The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with
Federal assistance provided by the FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to
its provisions.

NOTIFICATION TO FTA

If a current or prospective legal matter that may affect the Federal Government emerges, the Recipient must promptly notify the FTA Chief Counsel and FTA
Regional Counsel for the Region in which the Recipient is located. The Recipient must include a similar notification requirement in its Third Party
Agreements and must require each Third Party Participant to include an equivalent provision in its sub agreements at every tier, for any agreement that is a
"covered transaction" according to 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220.

(1) The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute, breach, default, litigation, or naming the Federal
Government as a party to litigation or a legal disagreement in any forum for any reason.

(2) Matters that may affect the Federal Government include, but are not limited to, the Federal Government's interests in the Award, the accompanying
Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto, or the Federal Government's administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and
requirements.

(3) The Recipient must promptly notify the U.S. DOT Inspector General in addition to the FTA Chief Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which the
Recipient is located, if the Recipient has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or abuse occurring on a Project receiving assistance from FTA. The
notification provision applies if a person has or may have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have
committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct. This responsibility
occurs whether the Project is subject to this Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA, or an agreement involving a principal, officer,
employee, agent, or Third Party Participant of the Recipient. It also applies to subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but
is not limited to, knowledge of a criminal or civil investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement or other investigative agency, a criminal indictment
or civil complaint, or probable cause that could support a criminal indictment, or any other credible information in the possession of the Recipient.

PATENT RIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA

Intellectual Property Riohts

This Project is funded through a Federal award with FTA for experimental, developmental, or research work purposes. As such, certain Patent Rights and
Data Right.*; apply tn all suhjart data first proriiiceri in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor shall grant the Agency intellectual property access
and licenses deemed necessary for the work performed under this Contract and in accordance with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. part 401, "Rights to
Inventions Mode by Nonprofit Orgonizotions and Small Business Firme Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any
implementing regulations issued by FTA or U.S. DOT. The terms of an intellectual property agreement and software license rights will be finalized prior tn'
execution of this Contract and shall, at a minimum, include the following restrictions:

Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the
Contractor authorize others to do so, without the written consent of FTA, until such time as FTA may have either released or approved the release of such
data to the public. This restriction on publication, however, does not apply to any contract with an academic institution. For purposes of this Contract, the
term "subject data" means recorded information whether or not copyrighted, and that is delivered or specified to be delivered as required by the Contract.
Examples of "subject data" include, but are not limited to computer software, standards, specifications, engineering drawings and associated lists, process
sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information, but do not include financial reports, cost analyses, or other similar
information used for performance or administration of the Contract.

1. The Federal Govemment reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to
use for "Federal Government Purposes," any subject data or copyright described below. For "Federal Govemment Purposes," means use only for the direct
purposes of the Federal Govemment. Without the copyright owner's consent, the Federal Govemment may not extend its Federal license to any other party.

a. Any subject data developed under the Contract, whether or not a copyright has t>een obtained: and

b. Any rights of copyright purchased by the Contractor using Federal assistance in whole or in part by the FTA.

2. Unless FTA determines otherwise, the Contractor performing experimental, developmental, or research work required as part of this Contract agrees to
permit FTA to make available to the public, either FTA's license in the copyright to any subject data developed in the course of the Contract, or a copy of the
subject data first produced under the Contract for which a copyright has not been obtained. If the experimental, developmental, or research work, which is
the subject of this Contract, is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under the Contract shall become subject data as defined herein
and shall be delivered as the Federal Govemment may direct.

3. Unless prohibited by stale law, upon request by the Federal Govemment, the Contractor agrees to indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal
Govemment. its officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting
from any willful or intentional violation by the Contractor of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation,
reproduction, delivery, use. or disposition of any data fumished under that contract. The Contractor shall be required to indemnify the Federal Government
for any such liability arising out of the wrongful act of any employee, official, or agents of the Federal Govemment.

4. Nothing contained in this clause on rights in data shall imply a license to the Federal Govemment under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope
of any license or other right otherwise granted to the Federal Government under any patent.

5. Data developed by the Contractor and financed entirely without using Federal assistance provided by the Federal Govemment that has been incorpor
into work required by the underlying Contract is exempt from the requirements herein, provided that the Contractor identifies those data in writing at the i., ^
of delivery of the Contract work.

6. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract for experimental, developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part
with Federal assistance.



PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS

The contractor acknowledges that 31.,U.S^. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the contractor's actions
pertaining to this contract."

PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT.

Recipients and subrecipienls are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

1. Procure or obtain:

2. Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain;or

3. Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any
system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889. covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment
produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

i. For the purpose of public saftey, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other
national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation,
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company(or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

-  • ii. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.

iii. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services procuced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in
consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be
an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.

b. In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (0, paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan,
grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is
reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement
equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained.

c. See Public Law 115-232,section 889 for additional in formation.

d. See also §200.471.

PROMPT PAYMENT

■|. contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 30 days
after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work. In addition, the contractor is required to retum any retainage payments to those subcontractors within
30 days after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is satisfactorily completed.

The controctor must promptly notify the Agency, whenever o DBE subconlroctor performing worit related to this conlroct is Icrminotcd or foils to complete its
work and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not
terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of the Agency.

SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

Seat Belt Use
The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees and other personnel that operate
company-owned vehicles, company rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms "company-owned" and "company-leased" refer to vehicles
owned or leased either by the Contractor or Agency.

Distracted Driving
The Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text
messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or
rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the work performed under this Contract.

SEISMIC SAFETY

The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for
Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation (DOT) Seismic Safety Regulations 49 C.F.R. part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent
required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract, including work performed by a subcontractor, is
in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safely regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

Applies to States -

> the extent required under federal law. the State, as the Recipient, agrees to provide the following information at>out federal assistance awarded for its
.,3 Program, Project, or related activities:

(1) The Identification of FTA as the federal agency providing the federal assistance for a State Program or Project;
(2) The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number of the program from w^iich the federal assistance for a State Program or Project is authorized:
and
(3) The amount of federal assistance FTA has provided for a State Program or Project.



b. Documents - The State agrees to provide the information required under this provision in the following documents; (1) applications for federal assistance,
(2) requests for proposals or solicitations, (3) forms. (4) noUfications. (5) press releases, and (6) other publications.

TERMINATION

Termination for Convenience (General Provisiont

The Agency may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the Agency's best interest. The .....
Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall
promptly submit its termination claim to Agency to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to Agency, the
Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner Agency directs.

Termination for Default [Breach or Cause! (General Provision)

If the Contractor does not deliver supplies in accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or if the contract is for services, the Contractor fails to perform
in the manner called for in the contract, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the Agency may terminate this contract
for default. Termination shall be effected by sen/inga Notice of Termination on the Contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default.
The Contractor will be paid only the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or sen/ices performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in the contract. If it is later determined by the Agency that the Contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a strike,
fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of the Contractor, the Agency, after setting up a new delivery of performance
schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.

OoDortunitv to Cure /General Provisionl

The Agency, in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor (an appropnately short penod of time] in which
to cure the defect. In such case, the Notice of Termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to Agency's satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms,"covenants, or conditions of this Contract within [10 days] after
receipt by Contractor of written notice from Agency setting forth the nature of said breach or default, Agency shall have the right to terminate the contract
without any further obligation to Contractor, Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Agency from also pursuing all available
remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

Waiver of Remedies for anv Breach

In the event that Agency elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this contract, such waiver by Agency
shall not limit Agency's remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other covenant, term, or condition of this contract.

Termination for Convenience fProfessional or Transit Service Contracts!

The Agency, by written notice, may terminate Uiis contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the Agency's interest. If this contract is terminated, the Agency
shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.

Termination for Default fSuoolies and Servicel

If the Contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in this contract or any extension, or if the Contractor fails to
comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for default. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the
Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contract. If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract ^
obligations, it is detemiined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination hod been
issued for the oonvcnicnoc of the Agcnoy.

Termination for Default fTransoortation Services^

If the Contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any
bxtoi ibiuii. 01 if ll'io Coi ilidOtot fails to coiviply with any other provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for dofault. Tho Agency nhnll
temiinate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only bo paid the contract price for
services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contract.

If this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of Agency goods, the Contractor shall, upon direction of the Agency, protect and preserve
the goods until surrendered to the Agency or its agent. The Contractor and Agency shall agree on payment for the presen/ation and protection of goods.
Failure to agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute clause.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall
be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for Default fConstructionl

If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or ariy separable part, with the diligence that will ensure its completion within the time specified in this
contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of this contract, Agency
may terminate this contract for default. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default.
In this event, the Agency may take over the work and compete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances,
and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the Agency resulting from the
Contractor's reftjsal or failure to complete the work within specified lime, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This
liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Agency in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall the Contractor be charged with damages under this clause if: 1. The delay in completing
the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts
of God, acts of Agency, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with Agency, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
embargoes; and 2. The Contractor, within (10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies Agency in writing of the causes of delay. If. in the judgment of
Agency, the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of Agency shall be final and conclusive for the parties, but
subject to appeal under the Disputes clause(s) of this contract. 3. If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor
was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the
convenience of Agency.

Termination for Convenience or Default fArchitect and Enaineerinal

The Agency may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the Agency's convenience or because of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract
obligations. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the
termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all services affected {unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2)



deliver to the Agency's Contracting Officer all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials
accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process. Agency has a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish or otherwise use, all such data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, surpmaries, and other information and materials.

If the termination is for the convenience of the Agency, the Agency's Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall
allow no anticipated profit on unperformed sen/ices. If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the Agency may
complete the work by contact or othervwse and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the Agency. If. after termination for failure to
fi contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the

nation had been issued for the convenience of Agency

Termination for Convenience or Default fCost-Tvoe Contracts!

The Agency may terminate this contract, or any portion of it, by serving a Notice of Termination on the Contractor. The notice shall state whether the
termination is'for convenience of Agency or for the default of the Contractor. If the termination is for default, the notice shall state the manner in which the
Contractor has failed to perform the requirements of the contract. The Contractor shall account for any property in its possession paid for from funds
received from the Agency, or property supplied to the Contractor by the Agency. If the termination is for default, the Agency may fix the fee, if the contract
provides for a fee, to be paid the Contractor in proportion to the value, if any, of work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly
submit its termination claim to the Agency and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to be paid the Contractor.

If the termination is for the convenience of Agency, the Contractor shall be paid its contract close-out costs, and a fee, if the contract provided for payment of
a fee. in proportion to the work performed up to the time of termination.

If, after serving a Notice of Termination for Default, the Agency determines that the Contractor has an excusable reason for not performing, the Agency, after
setting up a new work schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

(NONPROCUREMENT)

Instructions for Certtfication: By signing and submitting this bid or proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the signed
certiflcation set out below.

(1) It will comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations. "Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment," 2 CFR part 1200, which
adopts and supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. 0MB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Govemmentwide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonprocurement)," 2 CFR part 180.

(2) To the best of its knowledge and belief, that its Principals and Subrecipients at the first tier

a. Are eligible to participate in covered transactions of any Federal department or agency and are not presently:

1. Debarred,

2. Suspended,
3. Proposed for debarment,
4. Declared ineligible,
5. Voluntarily excluded, or
6. Disqualified,

b. its management has not within a three-year period preceding its latest application or proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against any of them for:

1. Commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or
local) transaction, or contract under a public transaction,

2. Violation of any Federal or State antitrust statute, or,
3. Commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making any false statement, or receiving

stolen property,

c. It is not presently indicted for, or othenwise criminally or crviily charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of
any of the offenses listed in the preceding subsection 2.b of this Certification,

d. It has not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default within a three-year period preceding this
Certification,

e. If, at a later time, it receives any information that contradicts the statements of subsections 2.a - 2.d above, it will promptly provide that
information to FTA,

f. It will treat each lower tier contract or tower tier subcontract under its Project as a covered lower tier contract for purposes of 2 CFR part 1200
and 2 CFR part 180 if it:

1. Equals or exceeds S25,000„
2. Is for audit services, or,

3. Requires the consent of a Federal official, and

g. It will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontractor:

1. Comply and facilitate compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200, and
2. Assure that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently declared by any Federal department or agency to be:

a. Debarred from participation in its federally funded Project,
b. Suspended from participation in its federally funded Project,
c. Proposed for debarment from participation in its federally funded Project,
d. Declared ineligible to participate in its federally funded Project,
e. Voluntarily excluded from participation in its federally funded Project, or
f. Disqualified from participation in its federally funded Project, and

3. It will provide a written explanation as indicated on a page attached in FTA's TrAMS platform or the Signature Page if it or any of its
principals, including any of its first tier Subrecipients or its Third-Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify compliance with the
preceding statements in this Certification Group.

(3) It will provide a written explanation as indicated on a page attached in FTA's TrAMS platform or the Signature Page if it or any of its principals,
including any of its first tier Subrecipients or its Third-Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify compliance with the preceding statements
in this Certification Group.

Certification

Contractor: ;

Signature of Authorized Official: : Date ! /

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official:



Federal Certifications

CERTIFICATION AND RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

_hereby certify
(Name and title of official)

On behalf of ^ tbat;
(Name of Bidder/Company Name)

• No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making
of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. '

•  If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

• The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers
(including sub-contracts, sub-grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by
the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or with this certification and
understands that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Section 3801, et seq., are applicable thereto.

Name of Bidder/Company Name:.

Type or print name:

Signature of authorized representative; Date.
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The following clauses are for inclusion into procurement documents, but can also be inserted into contractual agreements. However, additional clauses and
certification may be required for contractual agreements.



Federal Clauses

ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

a. Record Retention. The Contractor will retain, and will require its subcontractors of all tiers to retain, complete and readily accessible records related in
whole or in part to the contract, including, but not limited to. data, documents, reports, statistics, leases, subcontracts, arrangements, other third party
Contracts of any type, and supporting materials related to those records.

b. Retention Period. The Contractor agrees to comply with the record retention requirements in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Contractor shall
maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of at not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or
expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case records shall
be maintained until the disposition of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

c. Access to Records. The Contractor agrees to provide sufficient access to FTA and its contractors to inspect and audit records and information related to
performance of this contract as reasonably may be required.

d. Access to the Sites of Performance. The Contractor agrees to permit FTA and its contractors access to the sites of performance under this contract as
reasonably may be required.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT(ADA)

The contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301 (d). which states the Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities
have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing
those services and facilities to Implement that policy. The contractor also agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended. 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, vrith.the Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with
disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act, and with the Architectural Barriers act of 1968, as amended. 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq..
which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act. In
addition, the contractor agrees to comply with any and all applicable requirements issued by the FTA. DOT. DOJ, U.S. GSA, U.S. EEOC, U.S. FCC, any
subsequent amendments thereto and any other nondiscrimination statute(s) that may apply to the Project.

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has
not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant,
or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with
obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Agency."

BOND REQUIREMENTS

Bid Guarantee. Bidders shall fumish a bid guaranty in the form of a bid bond, or certified treasurer's or cashier's check issued by a responsible bank or trust
company, made payable to the Agency. The amount of such guaranty shall l>e equal to the value or a percentage of the total bid price.

in submitting this bid. it is understood and agreed by bidder that the Agency reserves the right to reject any and all bids, or part of any bid. and it is agreed
that the Bid may not be withdrawn for a period of [90] days subsequent to the opening of bids, without the written consent of Agency.

It is also understood and agreed that if the undersigned bidder should withdraw any part or ail of their bid within [90] days after the bid opening without the
written consent of the Agency, or refuse or be unable to enter into this Contract as provided atiove. or refuse or be unable to furnish adequate and
acceptable Performance and Payment Bonds, or refuse or be unable to furnish adequate and acceptable insurance, as provided above, it shall forfeit its bid
guaranty to the extent Agency's damages occasioned by such withdrawal, or refusal, or inability to enter into a Contract, or provide adequate security
thereof.

It is further understood and agreed that to the extent the defaulting bidder's bid guaranty shall prove inadequate to fully recompense Agency for the damages
occasioned by default, then the undersigned bidder agrees to indemnify Agency and pay over to Agency the difference between the bid guarantee and
Agency's total damages so as to make Agency whole.

The undersigned understands that any material alteration of any of the above or any of the material contained herein, other than that requested will render
the bid unresponsive.

Performance Guarantee. A Performance Guarantee in the amount of 100% of the Contract value is required by the Agency to ensure faithful performance of
the Contract. Either a Performance Bond or an Irrevocable Stand-By Letter of Credit shall be provided by the Contractor and shall remain in fuli force for the
term of the Contract. The successful Bidder shall certify that it will provide the requisite Performance Guarantee to the Agency within ten (10) business days
from Contract execution. The Agency requires ail Performance Bonds to be provided by a fully qualified surety company acceptable to the Agency and listed
as a company currently authorized under 31 C.F.R. part 22 as possessing a Certificate of Authority as described hereunder. Agency may require additional
performance bond protection when the contract price is increased. The increase in protection shall generally equal 100 percent of the increase in contract
price. The Agency may secure additional protection by directing the Contractor to increase the amount of the existing bond or to obtain an additional bond.

If the Bidder chooses to provide a Letter of Credit as its Performance Guarantee, the Bidder shall furnish with its bid. certification that an Irrevocable Stand-
By Letter of Credit will be furnished should the Bidder become the successful Contractor. The Bidder shall also provide a statement from the banking
institution certifying that an irrevocable Stand-By Letter of Credit for the action wili be provided if the Contract is awarded to the Bidder. The Irrevocable
Stand-By Letter of Credit will only be accepted by the Agency if:

1. A bank in good standing issues it. The Agency will not accept a Letter of Credit from an entity other than a bank,
2. It is in writing and signed by the issuing bank.
3. It conspicuously states that it is an irrevocable, non-transferable, "standby" Letter of Credit.
4. The Agency is Identified as the Beneficiary.
5. It is in an amount equal to 100% of the Contract value. This amount must be in U.S. dollars.



3. The effective date, of the Letter of Credit is the same as the effective date of the Contract
T. The expiration date of the Letter of Credit coincides with the term of the contract.
3. It indicates that it is being issued in order to support the obligation of the Contractor to perform under the Contract. It must specifically reference the
Contract l^etvyeen the Agency and the Contractor the work stipulated herein.

The issuing bank's obligation to pay will arise upon the presentation of the original Letter of Credit and a certificate and draft to the issuing bank's
representative at a location and time to be determined by the parties. This documentation will indicate that the Contractor is in default under the Contract.

F  3nt Bonds. A Labor and Materials Payment Bond equal to the full value of the contract must be furnished by the contractor to Agency as security for
pi., . .ent by the Contractor and subcontractors for labor, materials, and rental of equipment. The bond may be issued by a fully qualified surety company
acceptable to (Agency) and listed as a company currently authorized under 31 C.F.R. part 223 as possessing a Certificate of Authority as described
thereunder.

BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS

The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323{j) and 49 C.F.R. part 661 and 2 CFR § 200.322 Domestic preferences for procurements, which
provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA funded projects are produced in the United
States unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. § 661.7. Separate
requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C). 49 U.S.C. § 5323(u) and 49 C.F.R. § 661.11. The bidder or offerer must submit to the
Agency the appropriate Buy America certification. Bids or offers that are not accompanied by a completed Buy America certification will be rejected as
nonresponsive.

CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U^S.C. § 7401-7671q) and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to FTA and the Regional Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency. The following applies for contracts of amounts in excess of $150,000:

Clean Air Act

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401
et seq.

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Agency and understands and agrees that the Agency will, in turn, report each violation as required to
assure notification to the Agency, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance
provided by FTA.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act

(  :e contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as
a.....ided. 33 U.S.C. I2bi et seq.

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Agency and understands and agrees that the Agency will, in turn, report each violation as required to
assure notification to the Agency, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance
provided by FTA."

CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS

The contractor agrees:
a. to use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk earners,
dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to the underlying contract to the extent such
vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag commercial vessels:

b. to fumish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the
date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, "on-board" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each
shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration,
Washington, DC 20590 and to the FTA Recipient (through the contractor in the case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.); and

c. to include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract when the subcontract may Involve the transport of equipment, material,
or commodities by ocean vessel.

CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The following Federal Civil Rights laws and regulations apply to all contracts.

1 Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEC) Requlrements.These include, but are not limited to:

a) Nondiscrimination in Federal Public Transportation Programs. 49 U.S.C. § 5332, covering projects, programs, and activities financed under 49 U.S.C.
Chapter 53, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, or
ano and prohibits discrimination in employment or business opportunity.

L; .ohibition against Employment Discrimination. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Executive Order No. 11246.
"Equal Employment Opportunity." September 24.1965, as amended, prohibit discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex. or
national origin.

2 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq. and implementing
Federal regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. part 25



prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

3 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age. The "Age Discrimination Act of 1975," as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., and Department of Health and
Human Services implementing regulations. "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activitieis Receiving Federal Finandal Assistance." 45
C.F.R. part 90. prohibit discrimination by participants in federally assisted programs against individuals on the basis of age. The Age Discrimination in
Employment Act (ADEA), 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq., and Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) implementing regulations. 'Age Discrimination
in Employment Act." 29 C.F.R. part 1625, also prohibit employment discrimination against individuals age 40 and over on the basis of age.

4 Federal Protections for Individuals with Disabilities. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (ADA). 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.,
prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities in programs, activities, and services, and imposes specific requirements on public an.-
private entities. Third party contractors must comply with their responsibilities under Titles I, II. HI. IV, and V of the ADA in employment, public services, public
accommodations, telecommunications, and other provisions, many of which are subject to regulations issued by other Federal agencies.

Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity
The Agency is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the Agency agrees to comply with ali applicable Federal civil rights laws and implementing
regulations. Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the Agency agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C.
§ 5323(h) (3) by not using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. Under this
Contract, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the following requirements and shall include these requirements in each subcontract entered into as
part thereof.

1. Nondiscrimination. In accordance with Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee
or. applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex. disability, or age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with
applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

2. Race, Color, Religion, National Origin, Sex. In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act. as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., and Federal
transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332. the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of
Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations. "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity. Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. chapter
60. and Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity in Federal Employment." September 24,1965.42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by
any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it, referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, or sex (including
sexual orientation and gender identity). Such action shall include, but not be limited to. the following: employment, promotion, demotion or transfer,
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

3. Age. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act. 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-634. U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S.
EEOC) regulations, 'Age Discrimination in Employment Act," 29 C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et
seq., U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, 'Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial
Assistance," 45 C.F.R. part 90. and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and
prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any Implementing requirements FTA may issue.

A.Disabilities. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended. 29 U.S.C. § 794, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 19P''
as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968. as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 4151 et seq., and Federal transit law at 49 U.S ;
5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against individuals on the basis of disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any "
implementing requirements FTA may issue.

S.Promoting Free Speech and Religious Liberty. The Contractor shall ensure that Federal funding is expended in full accordance with the U.S.
Constitution. Federal Law. and statutory and public policy requirements: including, but not limited to. those protecting free speech, religious liberty, public
welfare, the environment, and prohibiting discrimination.



:ONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

j. Applicability: This requirement applies to ail FTA grant and cooperative agreement programs. —

). Where applicable (see 40 U.S.C. § 3701). all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
nechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations at
>9 C.F.R. Part 5. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II.

:. jer 40 U.S.C. § 3702, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of
10 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times
;he basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week.

j The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in
surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or
materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

e. The regulation at 29 C.F.R. § 5.5(b) provides the required contract clause concerning compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards
Act;

Comoliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safetv Standards Act

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of
laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to wo^ in
excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic
rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation' liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the contractor
and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the UnUed
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the
clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in
excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of
the Department of Lat>or withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work perfonned by the contractor or subcontractor under
any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours
and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also
a  ■'••ise requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by
i  - ■ ■ jbcontractor or lower der subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section.

CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) projects shall conform to the National ITS Architecture and standards. Conformance vvith the National ITS
Architecture is interpreted to mean the use of the National ITS Architecture to develop a regional ITS architecture in support of integration and the
subsequent adherence of all ITS projects to that regional ITS architecture. Development of the regional ITS architecture should be consistent with the
transportation planning process for Statewide and Metropolitan Transportation Planning (49 CFR Part 613 and 621).

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

a. Applicability: This requirement applies to all FTA grant and cooperative agreement programs for a contract in the amount of at least $25,000
(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pL 3000. As such the contractor is required to verify that none of the
contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or
disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).

(2) C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.
(3) The accompanying certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by the subrecipient. If it is later determined that the contractor did not
comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the Agency and subrecipient, the Federal
Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and
throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in
its lower tier covered transactions."

DAVIS BACON ACT AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT

a. In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages
specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Latxir. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week.
f  e Non-Federal entity must place a copy of the cun-ent prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The
V. .ion to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all
suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

'Compliance with the Cooeland "Anti-Kickback" Act.

(1) Contractor. The contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874,40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are



incorporated by reference into this contract.

(2) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as the FTA may by appropriate
instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these'clatises in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be
responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses.

(3) Breach. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as
provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out
these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result In the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the Agency deems
appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to;

(1) Withholding monthly progress payments; (2) Assessing sanctions; (3) Liquidated damages; and/or (4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as
non-responsible. 49 C.F.R. § 26.13(b).

Prime contractors are required to pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their contracts no later than 30 days from receipt of each payment the
Agency makes to the prime contractor. 49 C.F.R. § 26.29(a).

Finally, for contracts with defined DBE contract goals, each FTA Recipient must include in each prime contract a provision stating that the contractor shall
utilize the specific DBEs listed unless the contractor obtains the Agency's written consent: and that, unless the Agency's consent is provided, the contractor
shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material unless it is performed or supplied by the listed DBE. 49 C.F.R. § 26.53(f) (1).

It is the policy of the Agency and the United States Department of Transportation ("DOT") that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises ("DBE's"), as defined
herein and in the Federal regulations published at 49 C.F.R. part 26, shall have an equal opportunity to participate in DOT-assisted contracts.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, which are contained in the state energy conservation
plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be lifT*''~'1
to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recnjitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms c
compensation: and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or
applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall
not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such
employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to
such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action,
including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.

(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
understanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the lat>or union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments
under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment.

(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965. and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the
Secretary of Labor.

(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and by the rules, regulations, and
orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(7) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this
contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked
as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, so that such provisions will t>e binding
upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may tse directed by the
Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the contractor
becomes involved in. or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

FEDERAL CHANGES



49 CFR Part 18 Federal Changes - Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including
without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement between Purchaser and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from
time to time during the term of this contract. Contractorfg.failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contraQt,..^„

FLY AMERICA

Definitions. As used in this clause—

International air transportation' means transportation by air between a place in the United States and a place outside the United States or between two
Places both of which are outside the United States. 2) "United States' means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and outlying areas. 3) "U.S.-fiag air
carrier" means an air carrier holding a certificate under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 411.

b) When Federal funds are used to fund travel. Section 5 of the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. 40118) (Fly
America Act) requires contractors. Agencys, and others use U.S.-flag air carriers for U.S. Government-financed international air transportation of personnel
(and their personal effects) or property, to the extent that service by those carriers is available. It requires the Comptroller General of the United States, in the
absence of satisfactory proof of the necessity for foreign-flag air transportation, to disallow expenditures from funds, appropriated or o^erwise established
for the account of the United States, for international air transportation secured aboard a foreign-flag air canier if a U.S.-flag air earner is available to provide
such services.

c) If available, the Contractor, in performing work under this contract, shall use U.S.-flag carriers for international air transportation of personnel (and their
personal effects) or property.

d) In the event that the Contractor selects a carrier other than a U.S.-flag air carrier for international air transportation, the Contractor shall include a
statement on vouchers involving such transportation essentially as follows:

Statement of Unavailability of U.S.-Flao Air Carriers « . . . u, •» .
International air transportation of persons (and their personal effects) or property by U.S.-flag air earner was not available or it was necessary to use foreign-
flag air carrier service for the following reasons. See FAR § 47.403. (State reasons]:

e) Contractor shall include the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (e), in each subcontract or purchase under this contract that may involve
international air transportation.

INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The provisions within include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT.
whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT. as set forth in the current FTA Circular
4220 are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event
of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Contract. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act. or refuse to comply with any
request which would cause a violation of the FTA terms and conditions.



NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES

The Agency and Conlraclor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval 'bf the solicitation or
award of the underlying Contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this Contract and
shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Agency, Contractor or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any
matter resulting from the underlying Contract. The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with
Federal assistance provided by the FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not-be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject t'
its provisions.

NOTIFICATION TO FTA

If a current or prospective legal matter that may affect the Federal Government emerges, the Recipient must promptly notify the FTA Chief Counsel and FTA
Regional Counsel for'the Region in which the Recipient is located. The Recipient must include a simitar notification requirement in its Third Party
Agreements and must require each Third Party Participant to include an equivalent provision in its sub agreements at every tier, for any agreement that is a
"covered transaction" according to 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220.

(1) The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute, breach, default, litigation, or naming the Federal
Govemment as a party to litigation or a legal disagreement in any forum for any reason.

(2) Ivlatters that may affect the Federal Govemment include, but are not limited to. the Federal Government's interests in the Award, the accompanying
Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto, or the Federal Govemmenl's administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and
requirements.

(3) The Recipient must promptly notify the U.S. DOT Inspector General in addition to the FTA Chief Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which the
Recipient is located, if the Recipient has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or abuse occurring on a Project receiving'assistance from FTA. The
notification provision applies if a person has or may have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have
committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct. This responsibility
occurs whether the Project is subject to this Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA. or an agreement involving a principal, officer,
employee, agent, or Third Party Participant of the Recipient. It also applies to subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but
is not limited to. knowledge of a criminal or civil investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement or other investigative agency, a criminal indictment
or civil complaint, or probable cause that could support a criminal indictment, or any other credible information in the possession of the Recipient.

PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

(1) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA- designated items
unless the product cannot be acquired—
i. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule:
ii. Meeting contract performance requirements; or
iii. At a reasonable price.

(2) Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designate items, is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site.
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program."

PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS

The contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the contractor's actions
pertaining to this contract."

PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT.

a. Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

1. Procure or obtain:

2. Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain:or

3. Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered
telecommunications equipment or sen/ices as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any
system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889. covered telecommunications equipment Is telecommunications equipment
produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

i. For the purpose of public saftey, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other
.  national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation,

Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company(or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

ii. Telecommunications or video surveillance sen/ices provided by such entities or using such equipment.

iii. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services procuced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in
consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be
an entity owned or controlled by. or otherwise connected to, the govemment of a covered foreign country.

b. In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232. section 889. subsection (0, paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loa...
grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is
reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement
equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained.

c. See Public Law 115-232,section 889 for additional in formation.



d. See also §200.471.

PROMPT PAYMENT

The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 30 days
-»or the contractor's receipt of payment for that work. In addition, the contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within

lays after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is satisfactorily completed.

The contractor must promptly notify the Agency, whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its
work and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not
terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of the Agency.

SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

Seat Belt Use

The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat bell use policies and.programs for its employees and other personnel that operate
company-owned vehicles; company rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms "company-owned" and "company-leased" refer to vehicles
owned or leased either by the Contractor or Agency.

Distracted Driving
The Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text
messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or
rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on ofHcial business in connection with the work performed under this Contract.

SEISMIC SAFETY

The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for
Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation (DOT) Seismic Safety Regulations 49 C.F.R. part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent
required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract, including work performed by a subcontractor, is
in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

SPECIAL DOL EEO CLAUSE

Applies to construction contracts > $10,000; This contractor and subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-
741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities and
prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex. sexual orientation, gender identity or national origin. Moreover, these
regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without
reqard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, disability or veteran status.

:: ECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

Applies to States -

a. To the extent required under federal law, the State, as the Recipient, agrees to provide the following information about federal assistance awarded for its
State Program, Project, or related activities:

(1) The Identification of FTA as the federal agency providing the federal assistance for a State Program or Project;
(2) The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number of the program from which the federal assistance for a State Program or Project is authorized;
and

(3) The amount of federal assistance FTA has provided for a State Program or Project.

b. Documents - The State agrees to provide the information required under this provision in the following documents: (1) applications for federal assistance,
(2) requests for proposals or solicitations, (3) forms, (4) notifications, (5) press releases, and (6) other publications.

SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD

Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and
the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. § 1908, or otherwise set by law, must address administrative,
contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.
(Note that the simplified acquisition threshold determines the proourement procedures that must be employed pursuant to2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317-200.327.
The simplified acquisition threshold does not exempt a procurement from other eligibility or processes requirements that may apply. For example, Buy
America's eligibility and process requirements apply to any procurement in excess of $150,000. 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j)(13).

TERMINATION

Termination for Convenience (General Provision! . . . -rt.
The Agency may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the Agency s best interest. The
Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall
promptly submit its termination claim to Agency to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to Agency, the
Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner Agency directs.

lination for Default [Breach or Causel (General Provision)

ii ,ne Contractor does not deliver supplies in accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or if the contract is for services, the Contractor fails to pertorm
in the manner called for in the contract, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the Agency may terminate this contract
for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a Notice of Termination on the Contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default.
The Contractor will be paid only the oontract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in the contract. If it is later determined by the Agency that the Contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a strike,
fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of the Contractor, the Agency, after setting up a new delivery of performance



schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.

Opportunity to Cure (General Provision^

The Agency, in its sole discretion may. in the case of a termination for breach or defauit, ailow the Contractor [an appropnateiy short period of time] in which
to cure the defect. In such case, the Notice of Termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to Agency's satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within [10 days) after
receipt by Contractor of written notice from Agency setting forth the nature of said breach or default, Agency shall have the right to terminate the contract
without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Agency from also pursuing all availab,
remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

Waiver of Remedies for anv Breach

In the event that Agency elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this contract, such waiver by Agency
shall not limit Agency's remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other covenant, term, or condition of this contract.

Termination for Convenience fProfessional or Transit Service Contracts^

The Agency, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the Agency's interest. If this contract is terminated, the Agency
shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.

Termination for Default (Supplies and Service)

If the Contractor falls to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in this contract or any extension, or if the Contractor fails to
comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for default. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the
Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contract. If. after termination for failure to fulfill contract
obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been
issued for the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for Default fTransportation Servicesi

If the Contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any
extension, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for default. The Agency shall
terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for
services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contract.

If this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of Agency goods, the Contractor shall, upon direction of the Agency, protect and preserve
the goods until surrendered to the Agency or its agent. The Contractor and Agency shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods.
Failure to agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute clause.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall
be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for Default fConstructionI

If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will ensure its completion within the time specified in .
contract or any oxtoncion or failc to comploto tho work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of this contract. Agency
may terminate this contract for default. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default.
In this event, the Agency may take over the work and compete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances,
and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the Agency resulting from the
Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This
liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Agency in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall the Contractor be charged with damages under this clause if: 1. The delay in completing
the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts
of God, acts of Agency, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with Agency, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
embargoes; and 2. The Contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies Agency in writing of the causes of delay. If, in the judgment of
Agency, the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of Agency shall be final and conclusive for the parties, but
subject to appeal under the Disputes clause(s) of this contract. 3. If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor
was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the
convenience of Agency.

Termination for Convenience or Default fArchitect and Enoineerinol

The Agency may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the Agency's convenience or because of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract
obligations. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the
termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2)
deliver to the Agency's Contracting Officer ail data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials
accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process. Agency has a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish or otherwise use. all such data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials.

If the termination is for the convenience of the Agency, the Agency's Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall
ailow no anticipated profit on unperformed services. If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the Agency may
complete the work by contact or otherwise and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the Agency. If. after termination for failure to
fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the
termination had been issued for the convenience of Agency

Termination for Convenience or Default fCost-Tvoe Contracts^

The Agency may terminate this contract, or any portion of it, by serving a Notice of Termination on the Contractor. The notice shall state whether the
termination is for convenience of Agency or for the default of the Contractor. If the termination is for default, the notice shall state the manner in which the
Contractor has failed to perform the requirements of the contract. The Contractor shall account for any property In its possession paid for from funds
received from the Agency, or property supplied to the Contractor by the Agency. If the termination is for default, the Agency may fix the fee, if the contract
provides for a fee, to be paid the Contractor in proportion to the value, if any. of work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shail promptly
submit its termination claim to the Agency and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to be paid the Contractor.

If the termination is for the convenience of Agency, the Contractor shail be paid its contract close-out costs, and a fee. if the contract provided for payment of



a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the time of termination.

If. after serving a Notice of Termination for Default, the Agency determines that the Contractor has an excusable reason for not performing, the Agency, after
setting up a newwbrk schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the'tefmination as a Termination for Convenience.

VETERANS HIRING PREFERENCE

ans Employment - Recipients of Federal financial assistance shall ensure that contractors working on a capital project funded using such assistance
a hiring preference, to the extent practicable, to veterans (as defined in section 2108 of title 5) who have the requisite skills and abilities to perform the

construction work required under the contract, This subsection shall not be understood, construed or enforced in any manner that would require an
employer to give a preference to any veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an individual with a
disability, or a former employee.

VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONTRACT

Rights and Remedies of the Aoencv

The Agency shall have the folloviring rights in the event that the Agency deems the Contractor guilty of a breach of any term under the Contract.

1. The right to take over and complete the work or any part thereof as agency for and at the expense of the Contractor, either directly or through other
contractors; 2. The right to cancel this Contract as to any or all of the work yet to be performed; 3. The right to specific performance, an injunction or any
other appropriate equitable remedy; and 4. The right to money damages.

For purposes of this Contract, breach shall include.

Rights and Remedies of Contractor

Inasmuch as the Contractor can be adequately compensated by money damages for any breach of this Contract, which may be committed by the Agency,
the Contractor expressly agrees that no default, act or omission of the Agency shall constitute a material breach of this Contract, entitling Contractor to
cancel or rescind the Contract (unless the Agency directs Contractor to do so) or to suspend or abandon performance.

Remedies

Substantial failure of the Contractor to complete the Project in accordance with the terms of this Contract will be a default of this Contract. In the event of a
default, the Agency will have all remedies in law and equity, including the right to specific performance, without further assistance, and the rights to
termination or suspension as provided herein. The Contractor recognizes that in the event of a breach of this Contract by the Contractor before the Agency
takes action contemplated herein, the Agency will provide the Contractor with sixty (60) days written notice that the Agency considers that such a breach
has occurred and will provide the Contractor a reasonable period of time to respond and to take necessary corrective action.

Disputes

Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract that are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by an authorized
representative of Agency. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within [10] days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or
©♦•^enwise furnishes a written appeal to the Agency's authorized representative. In connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an

rtunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Agency's authorized representative shall be binding upon the
Ow, .tractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision.

In the event that a resolution of the dispute is not mutually agreed upon, the parties can agree to mediate the dispute or proceed with litigation.
Notwithstanding any provision of this section, or any other provision of this Contract, it is expressly agreed and understood that any court proceeding arising
out of a dispute under the Contract shall be heard by a Court de novo and the court shall not be limited in such proceeding to the issue of whether the
Authority acted in an arbitrary, capricious or grossly erroneous manner.

Pending final settlement of any dispute, the parties shall proceed diligently vwth the performance of the Contract, and in accordance with the Agency's
direction or decisions made thereof.

Performance during Dispute

Unless otherwise directed by Agency, Contractor shall continue performance under this Contract whiie matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages
Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of its employees,
agents or others for whose acts it is legally liable, a claim for damages therefor shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the
first observance of such injury or damage.

Remedies

Unless this Contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between the Agency and the Contractor arising
out of or relating to this Contract or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the
State in which the Agency is located.

Rights and Remedies . . . . ■ ■ r
The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of
any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the Agency or Contractor shall constitute a
waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in
any breach thereunder, except as may be specificaliy agreed in writing.



Federal Certifications

CERTIFICATION AND RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

.hereby certify
(Name and title of official)

On behalf of ^ that:
(Name of Bidder/Company Name)

• No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making
of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

•  If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

• The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at ail tiers
(including sub-contracts, sub-grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that ail sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by
the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or with this certification and
understands that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Section 3801, et seq., are applicable thereto.

Name of Bidder/Company Name;- '

Type or print name:

Signature of authorized representative: ^ Date.



GOVERNMENT-WipE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION
(NONPROCUREMENT)

'nstructions for Certification: By signing and submitting this bid or proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the signed
rlification set out beiow.

(1) It will comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations. "Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment," 2 CFR part 1200, which
adopts and supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. 0MB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Govemmentwide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonprocurement)." 2 CFR part 180,

(2) To the best of its knowledge and belief, that its Principals and Subrecipients at the first tier;

a. Are eligible to participate in covered transactions of any Federal department or agency and are not presently:

1. Debarred,

2. Suspended,
3. Proposed for debarment,
4. Declared ineligible,
5. Voluntarily excluded, or
6. Disqualified,

b. its management has not within a three-year period preceding its latest application or proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against any of them for:

1. Commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or
local) transaction, or contract under a public transaction,

2. Violation of any Federal or State antitrust statute, or,
3. Commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making any false statement, or receiving

stolen property,

c. it is not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminaliy or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal. State, or local) with commission of
any of the offenses listed in the preceding subsection 2.b of this Certification,

d. It has not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default within a three-year period preceding this
Certification,

e. If, at a later time, it receives any information that contradicts the statements of subsections 2.a - 2.d above, it will promptly provide that
information to FTA,

f. It will treat each lower tier contract or lower tier subcontract under its Project as a covered lower tier contract for purposes of 2 CFR part 1200
and 2 CFR part 180 if it:

1. Equals or exceeds $25,000,,
2. Is for audit services, or,

3. Requires the consent of a Federal official, and

g. It will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontractor:

1. Comply and facilitate compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200, and
2. Assure that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently declared by any Federal department or agency to be:

a. Debarred from participation in its federally funded Project,
b. Suspended from participation in its federally funded Project,
c. Proposed for debarment from participation in its federally funded Project,
d. Declared ineligible to participate in its federally funded Project,
e. Voluntarily excluded from participation in its federally funded Project, or
f. Disqualified from participation in its federally funded Project, and

3. It will provide a written explanation as indicated on a page attached in FTA's TrAMS platform or the Signature Page if it or any of its
principals, including any of its first tier Subrecipients or its Third-Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify compliance with the
preceding statements in this Certification Group.

(3) It will provide a written explanation as indicated on a page attached in FTA's TrAMS platform or the Signature Page if it or any of its principals,
including any of its first tier Subrecipients or its Third-Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify compliance with the preceding statements
in this Certification Group.

Certification

Contractor:

gnature of Authorized Officiai:^ Dale / !

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official:



BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION

STEEL OR MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS

If steel, iron, or manufactured products (as defined in 49 CFR 661.3 and 661.5) are being procured, the appropriate certificate as set forth below shall
be completed and submitted by each bidder or offerer in accordance with the requirement contained in 49 CFR 661.13(b).

Certificate of Compliance with Buy America Reoutrements

The bidder or offerer hereby certifies that It will comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(1). 9nd the applicabie regulations in 49 CFR part
661.

Company

Name Title .

Signature Date

Certificate of Non-Compllance with Buv America Steel or Manufactured Products Requirements

The bidder or offerer hereby certifies that it cannot comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(j). but it may qualify for an exception to the
requirement pursuant to 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2). as amended, and the applicable regulations in 49 C.F.R. 661.7.
Company

Name ^ Title " ^ '

Signature Date



Internal Revenue Sc. v:ce
District Director -
r.

Ditt: 0.5 l3"/9

bepartment of theJr.ersnry
j  i\0. BOX C0?1

Kreir-iliXtY ?Oi~T OFFICE

1BOSTON, .Mj\. 02203

Person to Contact:

MariD.yn Hamilton
Contact Telephone Number

(617) 22J-1A98

1

Soutiiweotem Community Ser\dCQs, Inc.
40 Mechanic Stroot
Keone, Nev/ Hampshire 0343^

Date of Exemption: March, 1966
Internal Revenue Code Section: 501(c)(3)

Gentlemen:

Thank you for submitting the information shown below. We have made
it a part of your file.

.The changes indicated do not adversely affect your exempt status
and the exemption letter issued to you continues in effect.

Please let us know about any future change in the character,
purpose, method:of operation, name or address of your organization.
This,is a requirement for retaining your exempt status.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sincarely yours.

Item Changed

Name

District Director

From

Sullivan and Cheshire

County Comnrunity Action
Asr.ociaten

To

Southv/estem

Coninunity Services,

Inc.

JFK Federal BIdg., Boston, Mass. 02203 Letter 976 (DO) (7-77)



637Form

(Rev. July 1973)

Depirtmint of the Trtisuty
Inlernil Revenue Service

Registration for Tax-Frce Transactions
Under Chapter 32 of the Internal Revenue Code

This Application Should Also Be Used by Producers and Importers
of Gasoline and Manufacturers of Lubricating Oil

JUL 8 ,1974
For District Director's Use Only

□2-7^t-0G51-I

c
•c
a

&
if

CO
o

c

Name of individual, corporation, partnership, association, etc.

Name under which business is opreretod

Business address (Number and street)

City, State, and ZIP code

■S^af-^urily'or Employer Identification Number
02-6013503• .
Will you be required
to file Form 720? . □ Yes □ No

File this application in duplicate
with your District Director of Internal
Revenue. See the instructions on
pages 2 and 4.

Appiication is hereby made for a Certificate of Registry in the name(s) indicated above. The applicant is a:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ' Cmm)

—— STRATI m

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New 'Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2022, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

'  r .

In pur opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies as of May
31, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those staridards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of Southwestern Community Services,, Inc. and related companies and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Sfafemenfs

Management is- responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial "statements in accordance with accounting principles generally acceptednn the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
freeTrom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies' ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available
to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a.reasonable user
based on the consolidated.financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain, professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the' risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a lest basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal controfrelevant to the audit,in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the-purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies' internal control. Accordingly,, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise-substantial doubt about Southwestern Community S.ervices, Inc,
and related compafiies' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period'of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,- among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
Internal controhrelated. matters that we identified during the audit.



Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies"
2021 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 22. 2021. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31. 2021, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Supplementary In formation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adrn'inistrative
f^equirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information Is the responsibility of management and was derived .fr'om and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare, the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the^ auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements" or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted ifi the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the consolidated financial! statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 9. 2023; on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s. internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose "of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and. the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinjon on the
effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
Internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
February 9. 2023



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

2022 2021

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total properly '

Less accumulated depreciation

Proporty. net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parties
Due from related paiTies
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current llabLlilies

Refundable advances

Current portion of Economic Injury Disaster Loan
Current portion ol long term debt

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above
Economic Injury Disaster Loan, less current portion shown above

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

3.153.976

1.745.952
243.990

5,143.916

1 1,243,212
146.415

11.389.627

14.022.711

8.564.624

134.352

8,698.97.6,

1.722.941

1.783.993
62.628

3.569.562

29.859.136 28.549,202

...555.554 565,380
958072 934.441

31.372.762 30.049.023

15527.483 14.621.952

15.845.279 15:427.071

94.230 138.001

47.566 55.138

1,479,277 1,471.741
111.033 105,790

384 384

1.732.490 1.771.054

S 22.721-.687 ■ § 20.767.687

$  208,035 $ 240',586

229.110 170.074

353,786 244.003

158.972 148.854

1,519.622 729.955

"3.585 " -

159.974 142,174

2,633.084 1,675.646

10.91 1.627

150.000

11.061.627

12.737.273

7,815.065
215.349

8.030.414

$ 22,721,687 S 20.767.687

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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snilTHWFSTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor

Rostrlctions

With Donor

Restrictions

2022

Total

2021

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental income

Supftort
Sponsorship
Interest income

Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous

in-kind contributions

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless progranis
Housing services
Economic development services
Other progranis-

Tolal program services

Supporting activities
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

S 24.553.574

2.991.407

1.817.636
610.247

28.520

1.099

90.609
156.954
89.366

30.339.412

139.925

30479.337

7.051,760

2.826,493

13.349.415

3.070.446

658.791

683.000

27.639.905

2.031.266

29.671.171

808.166

(14.836)

(43.771)

749,559

7,815,065

S 24.553.574 S 14.451.497

58.928

58.928

139,925)

(80,997)

(80,997)

215.349

2.991.407

1.817.636

669.175
28.520

1.099

90.609
156.954

89.366

30.398.340

7,051,76{}

2.828.493

13.349.415

3.070.446
658.79!

683.000

27,639.905

2.031.266

29.671,171

727,169

(14.836)

(43.771)

668,562

8.030.414

2.708.902

1.657.741

601.638

21.703

1.402

518.501

239.096
65.414

20.265.894

(80.997) 30.398.340 20.265.894

5.559.497

2,629.099

5.516.502

2,913.953

621.784
750.430

17.991,265

1.948.672

19.939.937

325.957

(60,897)

265.060

4,911.109

2.854.245

£  8.564.624 £ 134.352 S 8.698.978 £ 8.030.414

Sec Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

Education Ecnnomie Management

Home Enerpv and Homeless Housing Oevelopmoni Otfier Total and 2022

Proorama NwiriMon EHflrania Services Services Proflrp(»19 Pfooram General Total

Pa-rcti; S  5S1.4itS S  1.553..'13 S  1301.469 i  67V.177 • S  340.079 S  416.524 %  4.135.811 S  856,/43 S  4.592.550

1 'avoli'taxes i?7.r.r.7 49.849 51.W9 30 4S0 35.C45 340,122 |T8,379 40(1.501

Emplo/se congfitv 137.544 387.109 140.322 217.637 27,775 137.184 1.T147,57I 101,742 1,149.314

Re;itBn:S(>l 31.440 95.676 32.887 43.044 16.063 18.680 243,710 56.594 313.304

Advrrtionj I.UfjO 12.5/3 4-28 7.537 8 801 - ;«j.4-:.s 5.12U '36.525

t3ank chsfgfls 55 5C3 4.050 . . 5.348 9,701 15.049

Co nsulif cost 357 15,754 13,319 3.001 14 810 52.159 •27.747 - 175.946

Coni-actual 328,975 15,256 87.421 25.033 35.197 992.852 53,330 1.-355,212

Ocjxociotio-i 26,438 674,.sn6 3,StO 830.750 150.982 389.7rj

OiisyJtef)ist:alK'>n 2,539 430 125 3.G52 1 I.7.3S 15.401

DuiiiLaliii'.; 8.660 . - 8.650 5.503 14.163

tr.suance 6.-.23 16.620 js-eto 62.108 19.859 7.513 147,6:'0 45.537 103.228

IniofOSt 423 9.536 43.022 - 270 59.059 118.506 1'7,565

Wseinr, and rno(e*ftr>'te 354 a.235 832 2.562 7.333 l,-33C 8.9.T9

670 2.yi7 120 112.217 6.368 5,102 127.414 30,914 158.228

^/lsce!tanacu6 taxes 120.976 - 129 976 15C' 130.126

EquoTiont porchcoes 14.750 3,4V 1 5,370 519 24.046 7*VC 24,766

Office expense 43.?; 1 8,735 ?? 754 13.4.09 3513 90 3S.7;i2 74,371 112,773

Pus'.aa*; 190 383 26 24 171 - 736 33.927 34,723

Pro'esslonai fses 1,075 4.323 25.930 220 32,64S 55.753 118.331

Staff Cs\'etct>meni ana ifnin;ng 1,806 '2.(367 025 3.095 121 1,665 10,259 0.781 19.040

GuljscHoticns 228 - 228 180 408

Tateirtuiw 5,147 3.727 21.670 12,7.09 1.930 1.298 53.431 46,594 100,075

T.-3ve' 4.715 18.359 11.156 14,/34 26.330 24U 76.095 1,428 77,523

Vchctc 9.433 '2.099 24.535 79 216 13.061 128.374 1,420 •■29/34

Kant 0.0*0 16,;K)0 24 595 48.895 48.855

Sm*cosis ?1 ,«.57 205.132 455.406 385,317 19.74? 75 1..539.481 1C4.162 1.753623
Direct dient assrstarjce 5.336.825 212846 11.724.070 11,037 37.540 2,553 17.327.043 17,.327.043
In-kind «:xr>ens>>s . 09.360 . • .39.300 39.366

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
'29,67-..171MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION /.us'.veu 2.826.493 1'3.34y.415 3,970,446 658.'91 683.000 27.639,905 V.031.266

Aimcauon of manapement ana penerai exoer.ses 518.256 207720 981,053 225.648 48,415 50,194 2.031,266 (2.031,2661 1

vTOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S  7.569.996 S  3.034.212 S 14.330.498 $  3.296.094 S  707.208 S  733,194 S 29,6/1.171 S S 29.671.171

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

Ediicatinn Economic Managemani

Home Energy ana Homoieee Housing De\-alopman1 Other Total and 2021

Pfoorams Nulntion Pronriim.* Rarvfr.es Services Pronremn Pronram And GeoBrDi Total

®ay<Df S  436.3«7 S  1.518.514 3  491.084 J  725.103 S  350,543 S  439,136 S  4,011.067 S  762.1 16 $  4.763,183

®8ynDB D;<os 25.674 I36.56S 37,005 43.514 30.246 33.024 276.033 120.497 396.530

Emrtoyoe bAnefiis 171.?70 .351.585 144.229 203.870 5r)..553 180.763 1.197,703 40.500 1.244.211

Pel remem 32.604 55.776 24.671 51,X'd 20.760 14.238 229.367 66.965 296.322

A{)vsi|is>ng 3,100 396 1.2S0 1.638 - 6,419 133 6,552
SaiA 10 1.120 4,109 - 11 5.280 8.766 14,026

ConouiGf cost ^35 28.113 ir.oci 7.765 16.171 54,322 183.132 24/.4b"4

Corilf7«6lual t,o:7.4oi 12.504 42.954 61,431 580 43.737 1.174.007 59,518 1.233.525
OoOfACiabon 28,438 11/.98/ 6U3.U38 /.620 /5b.963 153.102 009.155

D»if*'re2islra;tm 2,793 320 543 3.153 0.019 11.772

Du|/li(rjli'K] 69 8.163 8.229 ■1.588 12.817
insurcncA 5 539 tS.C.'IO .V,.4n.3 57,061 15.296 n.flOO 1.34.123 43.4911 1//.BI6

li'taie?! 5,355 •  5.933 48.121 1.690 61.749 1 '3.918 1 75.867
Mcclt'fl an3 conference . S40 154 133 1.127 1.63/ 2.764

MiMcfanAoiis aj.p«n»e 2.363 1.242 82.239 9,546 1.359 97,249 2.075 59.924
Mlscolanoous inxoc 101.224 101.224 300 101.524
Eqids'ner.l DiirchAsnx 3ftn 3,333 r.,.02i - - 10.237 7.000 13.045

Oflks expense >9.084 17.479 6C-,8?2 11,834 2.568 740 112.588 49.579 I€2.I65

HOSOQS 300 36D 126 37 348 1.172 31.939 33.178
Piu'tissLital fees 1.050 3,330 38.627 4Z977 81.024 124,011.
Si3if0e-./eiopmen'. era uoming 3.406 1.32/ 1S6 514 1.185 9.185 1/,341 26.528
Htil^wlpjions 96 98 2.7C7 2.063
TeBWone 2.429 3.106 •2C'.662 18,872 2.299 1,117 48.515 47.535 96.050

Travsl R.104 12.320 7 217 9 515 lfi..33n 51.497 5.675 57.172

V«t»de 6.147 •1.170 1.7'I8 .11,329 35.941 9.852 99.187 3.912 103.099

Rcri 24,=.69 - 21.112 - 4.5,771 45,V/1

Space costs 122.47S 584.093 718.703 18,731 1 14 1,242.110 135.968 1,382.087

OlrecJ cuont a&s:s:encc 3./;a54-j I?9./02 4.126.169 12 9/1 24.399 j,/a2 8.135.512 8 135.512
65.414 6.5,414 65.414

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 6,559.497 3 629,399 5.516,5C'2 2.913 952 521.784 750.430 17,991.265 t.948,672 19.939,937

032.161 264.703 r.«l7.ri04 31.5,610 07.347 81.2?.! t.<H8.fi72 11,948.672)

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 6.1Q1,65S S  2,913.562 $  6.114.0C6 S  3.229,569 S  689.131 1  331.711 S 19.930,937 % $ 19.939,937

Saa NoIaa in CnosnllclatAd FmiahcIaI S(Aleniei)l5
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in nei assGis
Adjuslmenis lo reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Loss on sale of prcipeny
Loss on investment in limited partnerships
Forgiveness of debt

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties

Security deposits
(Decrease) increase in liabilities:

Accounts payable'
Accrued expenses

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property
Purchase of property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procoeds from long term debt
Repayment of long term debt
Proceeds from Economic Injury Disaster Loan

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED

FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

2022 2021

$  668.562 S  265.060

989.773 909.155

14,836
43.771 60,897

(90.609) (518.601)

38,041 (580.504)
(181.362) 31.348

7.672 3.929

(5,243) (2:242)

(32.551) 22,045

59.036 36.929

109,783 15.609

10.VI8 (300)
789.667 439.518

2.421.394 682,943

3.840-

(831.642) (432.400)

(827.802)

155.021)

155.021)

1.438.571

3.194,682

(432,400)

85.000

(272.062)
150.000

(37.062)

213.481

2.210.050

.  771.151

S  4.633,253 S 3.194,682

See Notes.to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
• FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for inleresi

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash escrow and resen/o funds

Total cash and restricted, cash

2022

$  176.903

$  3.153.976
1.479.277

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Pfooerty financed by long term debt 5:

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs;
prepaid expenses
Land and buildings
Furniture and fixtures

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LPs:
Accounts payable

A^ued expenses
Long lerrh debt

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LPs

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs

Partners' capital previously recorded as investment In related parlies

fotai transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs

595,015

2U21

175.005

S  1,722.941
1.471,741

$- 4,633,253 $ 3.194.682

787.599

•S'

S  36,807

3.382.003

624.491
33.781

$  4.077,082

5  57.865

•46.122

1.890.298

S  1.994,265

$  2.853,948

^

S  2.854.245

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to the'elderly,
disabled', and low-income households in the Cheshire and Sullivan counties of
New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the areas of education,
child development, employment, energy and its conservation-, -housing; and
homelessness prevention, Services are provided through Southwestern
Community Services. Inc., and its related corporation's, SCS Management
Corporation. SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation, SCS Housing
Development. Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described below. The
Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the
causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental
contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entities (collectively the Drganizatioh)
as Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic consolidated financial statements.

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing. Inc.
SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Development, Inc.
Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene
East Side)
Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook)
Keene Highland Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Keene Highland)
Warwick Meadow Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Warwick)

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accountirig in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP),
which require the Organization to report information regarding .its financial
position and activities according to the following net' asset classifications. The
classes of net assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets .that are not subject to
dohor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to. stipulations imposed
by, donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporaiy in nature;
those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by passage of
time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of. May 31. 2022 and. 2021, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
.sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.,Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with,the Organization's financial statements for the-year ended May 31j 2021 from
which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is recognized
as revenue.

InrKindi Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized skill,
are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by- donatidn. Contributions pf tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMP^ANIES

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates ahd assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting-period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at.the amount rnanagement expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2022.
The allowance for uncollectibie accounts was approximately $3,600 for the year
ended May 31, 2021. The Organization has-no policy for charging interest on
overdue accounts.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
expefienced 'any losses ih'such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated in a heavily"regulated environment. The operations
of' the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and
regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or
Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to
pay for the related cost, including the additional adrhiriistrative burden, Xo comply
with "a change. For the years ended"' May 31. 2022 and 202T, approximately 80%
and 71%, respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from
government agencies. The future nature of the Organization is dependent upon
continued support from the government.-
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMIViUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND'I

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are .stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles'and equipment 5 - 10, Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal governrrient. These grants also place liens on certain'
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from-the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021
totaled $989,773 and $909,155, respectively.

Advertising

■The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation are
exempt from Federal income taxes, under Section 501(c)(3) of. the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing. Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing,:Development,
Inc. are taxed ,as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net operating loss
carryforwards available- for the May 31. 2022 and 2021 .tax returns totaling
$1,252,122 and $1,230,191, respectively.- These loss carryforwards, may be offset
against future taxable income and. -if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS
Development Gprpor:ation;has federal net operating loss-carryforwards totaling $513
and $542 at May 31, '202'2 and 202 T.-respectively. These loss carryforwards may be

■offset against fiitui^e taxable income and, if not used, will begin to^expire in 2022.
SCS Housing Development, Inc., has federal net operating loss-carryforwards
totaling $55,129 and $5.9,861 at May 31-. 2022 and 2021, resp.ectiyely. These loss
carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin
to expire in >2035.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The tax effects of the carryforwards as related, to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31. 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $274,630 $271,025
Valuation allowance (274.6301 (271.0251

Deferred tax asset $ : $ ^

Drewsvllle, Troy Senior. Winchester. Keene East Side, Swanzey, Snow Brook,
Keene Highland, and WanA^ick are taxed as partnerships. Federal Income taxes are
not payable by, or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in
the partners' federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership
earnings, Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income lax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes."
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Organization's tax-position taken on its income tax returns for all
open years and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is
necessary in the Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

PASS ASC Topic No. 820-10. Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based-measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. In' accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may use
valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to
measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in
fair value'measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair' values. The hierarchy gives the
highest pribfity to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic
820-10 are described as follows;

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are .either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the .use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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SOUTHWESTERN COIVIMUNITY SERVIC^INC. AND RELATED GOIVIPANIES
I

NOTES t6 consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are Linobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and
the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of
the asset or'liabtlity including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those'instruments.

Support and Revenue Recognition

Contracts with Customers

Program fees are reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Organization expects to be entitled for providing childcare services to its
clients.

Generally, the Organization bills customers and third-party payors several days
after the services are" performed. Revenue is recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are detefrhined based on the
nature of the-services provided by the Organization. The Organization measures
the performance/obligations of its childcare services to the point when it is no
longer required: ;to provide services'to the client, which is generally weekly for
childcare services. These services are considered to be' a single, performance
obligation.

Reveriue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is recognized
when services are provided, and the Organization does not believe it is required to
provide additional services to the client.

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the fact
that all of the Organization's perfofrnance obligations related to contracts with a
duration of less than one year, the Organization has elected to apply the optional
exemption provided in FASB ASC 606-10-5G-14(a) and, therefore is not required
to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of
the reporting period.

The transaction price for childcare services is based on standard charges for
services provided to clients. Under the terms of the State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services childcare subsidy programs,
reimbursement for childcare services provided may differ from established rates. It
is the Organization's policy to set its rates to be consistent with current
reimbursement rates. Therefore, amounts due do not include significant variable
consideration subject to retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of
reviews and audits,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31> 2022 AND 2021

Private Grant Revenue and Contributions

Private grant contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other
assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been substantially met. Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction
expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the combined statements of activities
as net assets released from restrictions.

Grants and Support

Grant revenue is derived from various federal grant agreements and various
state and private entity passthrough grant agreements, and contracts to provide
funding support of the Organization's programs- and services provided by the
Organization including childcare, child development, social, health, nutrition,
employment, language, energy, and special needs seryices to families enrolled
in the Organization's programs. The Organization has evaluated its grant
agreements against applicable accounting standard guidance and determined
that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocal transaction)
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance with specific
provisions of the grant agreements.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized, as income, monthly, vyhen rents become due and
control of the apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual
leases are for a term of one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of
the teased units is transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the

consideration the Partnership- expects to be entitled to jn exchange for the
leased units. The cost Incurred to obtain a lease will be. expensed as incurred.
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eOMMtlNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPAfvJIES

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such.as salaries, rent, supplies; etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program arid supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 12% effective from June 1. 2021 through May
31,2022.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $25.0,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate or at a
floor rate of 4%. The- line■is'.s'ecured by all the Organization's assets." As of May
31, 2022 and 2021, the interest rate was 4%. There was no outstanding balance
at May 31. 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT
The long term debt consisted of the following at May 31;

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (NHH, 96 Main
Street). $

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community 'Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street).

2022 2021

117.535 $ 127,000

25,589 27,589
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIViMU.NlTY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPAP^ES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced.. The note is secured by- real
estate of the Organization (NHH, 17 Pearl). 242,708 242,708

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New-
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a-payrnent, or until project
is sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHH, 41-43 Central). 376.066 376,066

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31. 2019\ and
is now due December.2026. Under.the amendment,
interest rate is 4.94% and monthly installments for
principal and interest are $1,957 The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization
(People's United Bank, Milestones). 94,456 112.702

4.375% note payable to. Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office). 2,095,301 .2,134,970

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on contract.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG. Keene Office). 460,0.00 460.000
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SOUTnVtfESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. ANCTT^ELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039, Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% at May 31. 2022 and 2021.
The note is secured' by real estate of the
Organization (TD Bank. Keene Office/Community
Way). 362.931 376.617

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
Stales Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven ea'ch year
providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 50.000 75.000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment Is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property, is used for low income
housing through January 2025. the note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (HUD, 112
Charlestown Road). 30,000 45,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through July
2042 at which time the rerhaihing balance is due.
The note is secured .by real estate of the
Organization (NHH, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing nbte payable, to a county in
New Hampshire. No payrne'nt is due and 5% of the
balance Is forgiven each year through 2032 when
the remaining balance becomes due. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDpG,
Second Chance). 296,217 311.808
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED CDJVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE. YEARS ENDED MAY 31.2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Non-interest bearing note, payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement between •
the City of Keene and SCS for the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In total, SCS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. the agreement was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2022 to
increase the total loan to $.652,091. SCS will
receive the funds as progress is made. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization and will
be fully forgiven providing the facility serves low-
and moderate-income individuals for 20 years
(Keene Shelters). 629,280 127,215

5.54% note payable .to ,a finance company in
monthly installrhents for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econpline Van). 1,581 7,815

2.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of S820
through May 2031. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (Savings Bank of
Walpote, 45 Central Street). 76,974 84,395

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire. The note expires in June
2022 and payment is not necessary unless the
Organization defaults on contract. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (City of
Keene, 139 Roxbury Street), 77,100 77,100

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene. New Hampshifet with an original balance of
$240,000 reduced to, $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July 2020.. No payment is due and 5%
of the balance is forgiven each year through June
2037. The note is secured, by real estate of the
Organization (City of Keene, 139 Roxbury Street). 192,000 204,000

3.575% note payable to. a finapce company in
monthly installments fpr principal and interest of
$650 through September 2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf, Dodge Ram). 30,888
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SQU^tHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. ING.-A44D RELATED GOMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

3.75% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$530 through November 2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van). 25.960

4.373% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments- for principal and interest of
$534 through December 2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf. Promaster Van). 26.576

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are deferred
until the note matures in June 2029. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (ODBC). 640.000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficient improvements through the
Authority's Greener .Homes Program. .Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHH). 140,210 140.210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred' until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New/ Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund,
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 1,0% of the note, is forgiven each
year based on the Tolling balance. The mortgage
may be released after ten years jn Jariuary 2026.
The note is secured by real estate of, the
Organization (CDFA). 116.841 139,860
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SOtrTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. mX) RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund energy
efficient improvements through the Authority's
Greener Homes Program. Payment is deferred for
30 years, through August 2042. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (NHH). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey Non-recourse, 4.90% siniple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower
determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 286,530 287,710

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable to
New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due September
2043, payable, in monthly ihstallmerits of $1,698,
including interest at 2.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 341,364 353,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse", "mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to tow
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the rriortgage. 43T.859 436,974

Snow Brook - Noh-recoufse. zero interest mortgage
note payable to New Hanhpshire Housing, (AHF),
due June 2034, principal and interest payable at
the sole discretion of the lender from the excess
cash of the borrower determined by formula,
secured by the Partnership's land and buildings,
subject to low income housing use restrictions for
the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173 237,173
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SOUTHWESTERN GOMIVlUNffY. SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANI&S^

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's land
and buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions -for the 30 year term of the mortgage
note (NHH). 39,850 43,450

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire Housing
(FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole discretion
of the lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHH). 77,452 79.609

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP .loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low:
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under the.
aforementioned agreement, the loan is due upon
demand with interest accrued at a fate of 11.67%

for the period the funds were outstanding (Federal
Home- Loan- Bank). 150,000 150.000

Keene Highland - Non-recourse mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
August 2035, payable in monthly installments of
$3,122, including interest at 2.90%, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use .restriction's for the 30 year
term-of the mortgage note (NHH). 409,579 434.765

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferred mortgage note payable to the
City of Keene, - New Hampshire due June 2035,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (City of Keene). 915,000 915,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COlVlMUNITy^gRVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES'

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Warwick - 30 year, zero interest, non-recourse
deferred mortgage note payable to the Town of
Winchester, New Hampshire due August 2036,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (Town of
Winchester).

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Less current portion due within one year

500.000 500.000

11.420.143 11.071.420

(16.957) (17.619)

11,403,186 11,053,801
159.974 142.174

$11,243,212 $10,911,627

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2022 is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31 Amount

2023 $" 159.974
2024 164.282

2025 ,170.410
2026 176.786

2027 -159,624

Thereafter 10.589.067

Total $11.420.143

NOTE 4 ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER'LOAN
During June 2020, the Organization received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL), from the Small Business Administration with proceeds in the amount of
$150,000. The EIDL is payable over 30 years at an interest rate of 2.75% with a
deferral of payments for 30 rrionths from the date of the note. Instatlrnents, including
principal and interest, of $641 rhdnlhly begin in Decerhber 2022. The balance of
principal and interest*will be payable in December 2052. The loan is secured by
the Small Business Adrtiinistration.
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SQUTHWECTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RE-LATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of the EIDL as of May 31. 2022 were as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Amount

S  3.585

3,685

3,788

3,893

4,001

131.048

NOTE 5 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization realized
forgiveness of debt inconrie in connection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $90,609 and $79,431 for the
■years ended May 31, 2022'and 2021, respectively..

The Organization fecuynize'd furgiveness of debt of $439,070 related to the
Paycheck Protection Program during the year ended May 31., 2021. See
additional detail at Note 16.

NOTE 6 OPERATING LEASES
The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable
lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods range from
month to month to 2027. Monthly lease payments range from $900 to $3,625.
Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021 totaled $156,230
and $148,143, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31. 2022 on the above leases are as
follows:'

Year Ending
May 31

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

Total

Amount
$  52,915

49,5.00
49,481
■49,959
41.576:

$  243.431
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATEaCOMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 7 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the.amount of $143,703
and $144,916. respectively.

NOTE 8 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing, Inc.
and SQS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of eight limited partrierships formed
to develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services. Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $11,760,000 and $11,929,000 at
May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,348,000 at May
31, 2022 and 2021 provides collateral on these loans.

The Organization receives funds under various state grants arid:Trom Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing
laws and regulations,. If costs were found not io- have been incurred in
compliarice with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because: specific-amounts, if
any, have not been determined or assessed by-government audits as of May 31.
2022 and 2021.

NOTE 9 RELATED PARtY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
nine and eleyep: limited partnerships, respectively. Management fees charged by
SCS Housing, Inc. totaled $237,822 and $228,239, for the years ended May 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the
limited partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $47,566 and $55,138 at May 31, 202i and 2021,
respectively.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICE^-INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 10 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Corrimunity Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

2022 2021

Cityside Housing Associates, LP $ (9.516) $ (9.509)
Marlborough Homes. LP (57) (43)
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP tl2..539) (12,524)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates. LP (2,436) (2.247)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 137,205 180.727
Westmill Senior Housing. LP 34 49
Alstead Senior Housing Associates. LP (18.461) (18.452),

£  94.230 £ 138.001

SGS Housing Development, Inc. Is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates.. LP. Marltiorough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, Woodcrest Drive
Housing Associates, LP, and Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP. a 0.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP. and a 1% partner of
Westmill Senior Housing, LP during the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021.

SOS Housing, Inc. Is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Seniut Housing Associates,
LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates. LP, Snow Brook Meadow Village
Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP during the
years-ended May 31. 2022 and 2021.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP and Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, LP were acquired by
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending May 31, 2021
(see Note 14), and therefore the limited partnerships are included in the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021.
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SOUTHWESTERN COIVIMUNITY SERVICES. IMGr-AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31. 2022 and 2021, consists of the following:

2022 2021

Total assets S  51.204

Total liabilities

Capital/Member's equity

Income

Expenses

Net loss

14,923

36.281

£  51.204

$  3,306

4.713

15i200

37.969

£  53.169

$  3,267

4.719

£  .(1.4521

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has reached
one year of service. Employer contributipns are at the Organization's discretion
and totaled $310,304 and $296,322 for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

NOTE 12 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

GAPSAA/arm Fund

Transport
MS Parents Association

Total net assets with donor restrictions

$

2022

108,508

20,000

5.844

2021

16,646

101.736

90,000

6.967

134.352 £ 215.349
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVUitJITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 13 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS
The board designates a portion of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcello
GAPS funds. There was $12,792 and $12,790 designated by the board at May
31. 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 14 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS
During the year ended May 31, 2021 i Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
acquired a partnership interest in two low-income housing limited partnerships:
Keene Highland and Warwick. The amouiit paid for the partnership interest In
Keene Highland and Wanvick was $1 each, and at the time of acquisition,
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the general partner.

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnerships at the
date of acquisition:

Keene

Hiahland Wanwick

Date of Transfer 07/01/2020 01/01/2021

Cash $  156,907 $. 68,061

SecOrity deposits 21,321 12,460

Cash reserves 391,456 154,727

Property, net 2.769.245 1.237.249

Other assets 25.946 10.861

Total assets ^3.364.875 1.483.358

Notes payable 1.372,220 518,078

Other liabilities 85.048 18.939

Total, liabilities 1.457.268 537.017

Partners" capital 1.907.607 946.341

Partners' capital, previously recorded
as an investment in related parties 269 28

Partners' capital transferred ■$-1;907.876 $  946.369.

29



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 15 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related
companies' financial assets as of May 31. 2022 and 2021:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related party
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Due from related party
Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2022

3,153,976

1,745,952

47,566

•1.479.277

6,426.771

(47.566)
f1.479.277)

(1:526.843)

2021

$  1,722:941

1,783,993

55,138

1,471.741

5.033.813

(55,138)
f1.471.741)

(1.526.879)

$ 3.506.934

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operatirig expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$2,350,000 and $1,559,000 at May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 16 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, is established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act). If the
Organization did not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion-of the PPP loan is
payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the
first ten months. The Organization has used the proceeds for purposes consistent
with the PPP and the PPP loan has been forgiven in full. Therefore, forgiveness of
the loan totaling $439,070 was recognized on the Consolidated Statement of
Activities for the year ended May 31. 2021.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 17 RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 18 OTHER EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's operations. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in tum, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. The Organization's business could also
be impacted should the disruptions from COVID-19 lead to changes in consumer
behavior. COVID-19 also makes it more challenging for management to estimate
future performance of the businesses, particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial. position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditip'ns that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecdgnized subsequent events are events that provide eviderice about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through February
9, 2023, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANtES

CONSOUDATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENOEO MAY 31. 2022

Educalion Economic Munflgemeni
— Home Energy and Homeless Housing Deveioomeni Other Total and 2022

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Services Snrvlca^ PrfMirnms Pfooram General Tolol

REVEf^ES AND OTHER SUPPORT
GoA^nir.cni conatcis i  o.BBiTae S 3,383.774 5 12.828.412 5 4.791 S 714 196 j 226.735 V 23.«5t.204 S sa^-S'/n 24.553,5/4
Pmg/Sm }i*rvr,(» 1.105.037 93 555 781.640 945.475 2.985,407 G.noo 2,991.407
RtiiiisI iTHjo^ne

. 84,046 1,713.405 . 1.797.451 20.185 1.517,636
SuDooa 08.:a» i4.4ai 254,636 191,342 120.408 649,1 '5 20.000 660.175
: lOoriw.fshi::

. 28.520 ?n,.520 . 25,520
I'lUtriKl incu'itt 7 2 153 302 56 54 574 525 1.099
Fc/Qivonoss cfdcDt - e/.soo 23.019 vj.eot' 00.609

Mucei'aneoiR 10.27(1 I.M3 9.973 8ri,870 141,797 15.157 156.954

In-Klna cor.irisuiions 89.355 _ . 89.306 . nP.3iT.

TaIrI rsv^iiR5 and nihftf S 7 P25,Pfl9 I 3£»3l5r. ?•13,430 355 2 GtO 227 % 939 ?ar, ? 1,3?1,192 % ?0 734 1(W $ 004 237 S 30.398.340

EXPENSES

favroii S  551.449 s 1,553,713 S 601 459 S 672.177 S 340,079 s 418,924 % 4,135.811 i 858,748 } 4.902.559

pRyrnll 40.1.37 12^007 49 849 r.1,.549 30,490 .35,545 34'7.1?? r>n,.379 400,.551

Ei^iplo'^e bw'ijfils 137,5.14 38» 103 140 322 217.837 27,775 I37.';a4 1.047,571 (01,743 1.149.314

Raii'emeni 31.440 05.575 32.8S7 49.0'l''. 16,063 13.530 2-17,7I0 66.594 310.3:4

Acvcrtisina 1.UW> 12.5/3 420 7.63/ 8.K.M 30.405 5.120 35,525

Ogn'< chsrcas .TO 6S3 4.850 - 5„34fl 9.701 15,049

Con>D";tf co<i 307 15.754 13.319 8.001 14,818 52.199 127.747 179.946

Cvl'llilCUldl 628.075 tS.iSS 87,421 26.033 35.197 592.882 63.330 1.050.212
0efK6C'3ilon . 26,433 134.056 674.506 3.810 S3S.700 150.983 939,773
OuC3/rcQisirr.tion 2.539 - 490 50« 125 3.662 11./39 16.401

Dijpricaling 8,:.o3 - - 8.C00 f.,503 14.183

lr>urance 6.123 16.320 35676 62.108 19.650 7,313 147.699 45.537 103.230

TBrosi '23 9.536 48.822 278 59.059 118.505 177.565

L'Mtlna ar.d -xntmenco 354 3.256 832 2.882 7,303 1.C35 8.039

(/iscciiai'.coiis CXCC.XC 8/0 2.317 120 112.217 6.388 5.102 127.414 30.514 ■-58.228
l/UcaHar-eaxs laxRS . 129.970 129.978 1.53 130.126
Ecuipmen ou-chases 14.730 3,421 - 5.376 519 24,046 720 24.700
OITce exueiiss •13.201 8,735 22,754 IC.4O0 3.513 90 88.702 2-1.071 1 (2.773
Pcslace 190 303 28 24 171 - 706 33.027 34.723
PrjIjsjicnDi fees 1.075 4,323 26.930 220 32.548 8S./53 118.301
Siaii devatoomem and ifamtro Lnso 2..W 825 .*j.095 121 1,RF.5 1(1,2.59 E.7B1 19.040
SL&KriDlions - r?n 22(1 IW; 408

5,147 3.777 21,070 19.700 1.030 *.298 ro.4Si 45,504 100,075
"^ntvA 4,715 18 K>c 11.158 14.784 26.330 249 70,095 1.428 77,523
Vgl>"cie 9.433 2.099 24.565 79.216 13,061 128.374 1.420 129,794

Renl 8.000 24.395 48.695 - 48.695

Scan: ccsls 21.827 205.VJ2 456. <108 686.317 19.742 25 1.589.461 16-1,162 1,753.623
Oi't!:;! 'Jienl 5.338.825 2-2.648 11,724,070 11.007 37.540 2 963 17.327.043 17.327.043

69.306 89.366 89.360

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 7.051.720 2.825.492 15,349. .115 3.070,446 6.S8.79I 683,0(50 27,030,905 2.031.2(36 29.671,171

AlacsKon of managomoni and gene'ol e<par>S9S 510.230
..

951,053 225,648
_

48.4i; 50.194 2.031.260 (2,031.266)
-

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $  7 509 950 s 3,034.213 S 14.330.408 S 2.290.094 i 707.200 $ 723 19-1 $ 29.071,171 < S 70,871.171

S«><> IndKfMndAnt AiidilorA' Roparl
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SflUIMWESTERN COMMUNrTY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CORSOLtnATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION

Ailucaijuri ul tiiui<;tuui<wit 'iifj gsneisl

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Education Ecanomle

Home Energy and HomaWts.s Hoiisirw) navelnnmant other Total Management 2021

Proorams Nutrition PrtKjtams Sendees Services Proarams Program and General Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Ou'/utiime'ii co(il(8ct!> 5  1.633.049 $ 3,l25.:5l S  5.267.951 S  1,:63 S  795.997 S $  13.326.118 S  625.379 S 14.451,497
Proprafp serv;c0 fee 1.028.348 53.851 646.171 776.732 2.708.902 . 1708.002
Rental ncnme 93.9£4 1.£6n.i33 127 1.657.741 1,557,741
Supood 55,162 U.S69 242,1'S 180,072 11H.194 501.572 66 601.638
Scoiscrsnip 21.703 21,703 21./U3
lnlaiK.sl i.'v/'.ma 13 11 198 '88 22 35 067 735 1.402

ForQivonass 01 aooi 55.111 23.L2U 79.4'il 43y.U'0 518.501
r4lsi*.a>!aneo.>s 1.947 3.906 4,613 119.: 73 25 39.302 169.234 09.802 239.098

In-kind conifibuiiors C5.414 06.414 65.414

T 013I "Bvenues an: oiiior smoooi S 5.718 519 t 3101.353 S a7i:. i:i3
S  U/0.-.16 $ 962.163

S  1 13-,12
2'3 26b 804

EXPENSES

Paytyli 5  '186.367 S  1,513.514 $  '191.054 S  725,103 5  350.843 s 439.13€ 8  4.011.057 S  752.116 5 4.763.183

P3)-roii loxes 2b.6V4 106,3bi 3/.0'.'5 4:i.f;14 30.248 33,024 276,033 120.497 396.630

fc Ttc-itfves beneiis
Retirf^an:

171.270 Wt.snp 144,229 233,970 55.553 160.793 1,197,703 40.506 1.744,7*. 1

32.004 85,770 24,671 >tJ09 20,760 14.236 229.35? 65.905 290.322

Adveflisiiiy 3.I0D 356 1.295 1,638 6.410 133 6.562
Bank Cnarpofi 10 1,130 4,109 11 5.260 S.755 14.020

Ccmouier :o3i ?n,ii3 i2,nr.i '.7CG i'X;7i 04.322 183.1 32 247,454

Ccntractual 1.007.401 i2.aoj 42,954 >1.431 080 48.737 1.174.097 59.518 1.233,525

OlsprtM.'tiiliuci •  26.436 117.067 0:'3.033 7.620 755.053 153.*i02 909,155
Duoe/rc$Xotrsiiao 2.«9': 123 543 3.153 8.619 11.//2

UuD'icalmg e9 n.inn 8.229 4,M8 17.817

linursnce 5.539 15.C35 33.483 57.881 15.298 . 6.390 134,126 43.490 177.616

Inisrost 5.SS5 5.963 18.-21 l.;9j 61.74'j 113.918 176.667

Mootina and conference 943 *54 133 1.177 1.6.37 2.764

MkcetlaneoiLk sicpanM 2,803 1.242 >2.239 9.54G 1.259 97.249 2,075 99.924

MlKellareeu& taxes ■ jl.O?-! 101.224 330 iDt.523

Eouip'rant ourdiases 386 3.23C- 6.521 10.23' 2.808 13.045

Ofico cxocneo 19.084 T',479 60,072 11.534 2.560 743 112.500 49.579 152.106

Pnslage 300 ^.5 130 37 348 1,179 31,999 33.178

Professirnsl 1.050 3,300 38.527 42.977 81.034 124.011

Siaff developrrar-i snd trsmtna 3.4ce 1,327 185 2.406 614 1.185 9.106 17,341 20.525

S'jescnDiions 99 9fl 2.767 2.865

Tefeplxne 2.459 3.100 a),092 18,572 2,299 1.117 48.515 47,535 Qo.cro

iTaw" 6.IC4 12.325 7.212 9.115 15.338 51.497 5.675 57.172

Vatticia 0.147 1.170 1./48 41.229 36.941 9.662 y»,i07 3 912 103.090

Kent 21.55? 21.112 . 45,7? 1 45,771

Soars cesis 122.478 :-84.093 '18 706 ie.721 114 1,242.119 139 988 1,362.387.

D'leRl d ant a^islurKu 3,788.549 179.702 4.126.109 12,671 24.399 3.782 2.135.512 8,135.512

In-kind eicertses 65.414 65.414 05.414

fi.CyS.AS? 2,6^9.099

602.161 284.763

iGM5,602

567,504

2,913,903

316616

'321.724

67.347

700,4X

81.261

17.99;,205

1.948.672

1.948.672

[1.946.672)

S 6,16;,658 5 2.913.562 S 6. i K.0D6 S 3.229 566 8 •8S.I3I $ 831.711 S 15.939,937

19.939.937

I  19.939.937

Se« Independant Auditors' Report
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES \UC

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF <:EDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

FEDERAL GRANTORS

PASS-THROUGH GRArfTOR/PRQGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of Aqricultura

•S|iecwl.Siipptemerilal Nirfrilicr* Prciyam fc*
Wcxren, In'anls. and Children ;WlC)

Chiidsna Aduti Care Food Progran
Cl'.ild and Adull Gate Fyod Pn>jrcim

Food Dte^bution Cluster
Clxniiit^Uily Su'jpiu'naiilal Foad Pr'.Hjram
Cotnm^ily Suppiemenial Food Program (Fooc Cotrimodiiies;

Tutsi U.S. Depsiliiie<ii u( A^'X'ulturu

U.S. Depnttment ot Hotiainq end Urban Oevglopfwef^t

Com.i*jnny Davcloomont Slock Granls/Staie s Progrnm and
Non-Entltlanon: Grams In Hawaii

Emergfncy Solutions Orent Program
COVlDty Efnsrgerrr/Sohilinn!* Greot Program

Supooiivc Housing Hrocrsn-.
SupooiKre Housing Program

Shelter lius Care

Cofttinjum of Care Prograrr

Corvinjum of Care Program

Com njom of Core Progrom

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

10.5.S7 Slate of N-l, OeparmBnt of Hflallh S Humnn Service.s

I0.5S8 Suite of NH. Dcpsrjr.cnt of Education

10.558 StaUs of NH. Deparjruni of Education

10.565 Statu of NH. EwKniruni of Hualih & Human Sur/ictis

10.56.5 Communltv. Action..Program Selknap-Merflmack Coondos

14.228 CiiynfKeervo

U.231 State of NM. DMHS. Eiureau of Housing Supports
t4.2:t* State of NH. DHHS, Bureau of Housing Supports

M.tllS Stale of NH. fDHHS. Bureau of Housing Supports

14.235 Stole of NH, DHKa. Bureau of Housing Suppods

14.238 Slate of Nil. DIIIC. Bureau ol Housing Supports

14.267 State of NH. DHH5, Bureau of Housiryg Sucporls

14.267 State of NH. UHH^. Bureau of Housir>g Sucports

14.267 Slate of NM. 0111-^. Ekireau of Mousing Supports

Totci U S. Ccportmeni of Housing and Urtsir Dcvcloprtoni

U.S. Deoartment ot Transportation Federal Transit Admlnistratioo (FTA)

Fnnr.u'a Grants for Rural Are.is

Transit Services Programs Cluster

Enhancod ModiiUy of Seniors and Individuals with CisoblBiies

Federal Transit Cluster
Bus ao^ Bus FacHiiies FomrJa 8 Discretionary Programs
(Bi6 Programi

20.509 .State of NH, Depsftmem of TranspodaiirK,

20.513 Sioto of NH. OcpaiWien: of Transportation

20.526 Slstc of NH, Ocpaflmcni of Tmnsoortasloo

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

f; 1 (V09n.5?6000ri0-102-500734

Unknown

Uiiknowti

010-090-52600000-102-500734

Lfnknown

SCS'Shellor improvements

05-95-95-953310-717C0O000-1O2-50731

Oft-H5-42-423O10-792V0n(K)

05-25-95-953310-717600U0U-102-50 7 31

05-96-42-42301V-79270000

NHn057L1T0019lO

NHOD02L1T001904

NHG096L1T0019'>»

NM(]074L1T001907

04-96-9fv9G4010-291G

04-96-96-954010-2916

04-36-96-0340lO-2ai5

FEDERAL

EXPENOfTURE

114.790

59.483

2.400

106.339

12.255

283.853

133.U70

27,970

83.228

125.004

83.857

250.358

204.273

103.729

562.370

618.918

296,108

161.940

226,294

293.089

1.590.343

548.491

50.465

3.028

I otel U.S. Departmeni oi I ransportalion Federal T ransit Admlmstratjon (K lAj
See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

607.984
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31.2022

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE"

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

U.S. Dcoartmcnl of Treasury

Cornnavirus Rel'ief Fund

Eineiyi;tKr,' Reiilai A!»siisUitK:e PrjHtain
21.019

21.023

SuJlo of NH, DHHS. Buraau of "HruslngSupparts

New HampsNre Housing

05-95-42-423010-104100CO

Unkncwn

S 60.659

11.410.555

Total U.S. Depadmen; of Tr&avury s 11.471.314

li.R. Deoartmnrd of Fonrnv

Wcmherizfltinr* Awsinnnr. for Lowz-lncnfTis nnrsons P.I.042 -SmtB nf NH Officn nf Ennrpy A '"anrtiro fli-02-024ni(V77{>6-074.5CK)5fl7 « 669.132

Total U.S. DcoErtmcnt of Snorp^" 1 869.132

U.S. Deoartmenl of Health & Human Services

Aging Cluster
Socdai Programs lor the Aging. Title ill. Pan B,

Grants for Supoortivc Sc"vicc3 ond Senior Centers

Spedal Programs for the Aging. Titio ill, ̂ an B.
Grants lor Supuurt'tve Ser'./ices and Sarilui Curiterv

93.044

93.044

State of NH. Oflico of Energy & "'anning

S'^le of NH, DHHS. Bureau of Eidertv 6 A3uK Ser-ricce

01-02-024010-770S-074-500f><{'/

05-95-48.481010-7672

S 5.730

70.240 $ 75.970

Grants to Stales to Supood Oral Healih Workforce Act'iv'ities 93.230 Stdlu of NH. OHKS. NH Madicaid 1008268 2.4G3

Acli-zilies p Support State. I rioal. Local end l emiorial (SI LT)
Hcollh OcportmcM Response lo Public Health or Hcallhcaro
Crises i 93.291 State of NH. DHHS. DIvlstor. of Public Health Ssrvnces 01909057710C03500731 13.071

l.ow imomfi Moms Energy Assistance (Fuel Assistance)
Low Income Home Enero' AMistance (BWi')

COVAD-t9 Low lixomv Hutna ErKig>' Assistance

ARP.A Low Income Home Energy Assistance (BWP)

ARP.A Low Incorrre Homo Enorgr Asslstanco

93.5G8

S3..A(jH

33.566

93.568

33.568

Stall* of NH, Office of Energy 8 Piannirg
State nl NH, Otiifte of Uni»jgy 8 I'lanrtirg

State of NH. DHHS. Admlnlsiratioo (or'CnHoren 4
FaiiiHics. Off'crr of Curninuriily Sen/ices

State of NH, Office of Energy 8 Planning

Siato Of NH. Offico of Energy & Planning

02-52-52-520010-18870000-074.500587

01-(12-l)2-0'240ia-77f)nOf>00-S(inSft7

02-&2-b2-520010-18870000-074-b0058/

Gruril tf2001NHE5C3

02-052-052-520010-24'I90000-07<1-50C587

02-052 052-520010-24490000

1,420.005

23/.96«

138.431

307.274

33.817

4.150.168 6.353.519

Community Services Block Grant

COVlO-10 Communltv Servicos Block Grant

93.569

93.569

Slate of NH. DHHS. Drv. of Famrty .AssistBrtcm

SlolD of NH. DHHS. Divisior^ of Economic & HouJms

Slaoa.ty

500/31

500731

357.6,12

222.106 579,718

Corrwrrunity Services Slock Grant - Dtocrciloanry 93.5^0 Sioto of NH. DHHS. DN. o' Fonlly Assistance Unkrxjwn 22.652

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

FEDERAL GRANTOR.'

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. DeoaHmenI of H»alth & Human Services icontinuedl

Mend Start Cluster

Head Start

CCVID-lOHo3d Start

Total U.S. Oeoertmcnt ol Health & Human Services

U.S. Ocooftmont of Homeland Security

fmergency Food and Sheltsr Nat'onal Soarc Proflram

"cwl I I.S. nRfwrtmsnl nf Hrmv.lanrt Security

]
tot^l

ASSISTANCE

USTING

NUMBER

03.600

93,600

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

97.024

Direct ̂ untJing

Qlrocl Funding

State oi NH. DHHS. OT'cc o' Human Scrvccs

GRANTOR'SJ^SER

01CH011'IP4

01HE000336

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

2,270,884

68.776 S

U"Known

2.339,660

s 9.390.DS3

i 9,293

3_ 9.293

s 24.507.d95

See Notes to Scttedule of Eripenditures of Fedemi Awards
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IVIAY 31. 2022

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards {the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs, of the federal government for.the year ended May 3t, 2022. The
information in this Schedule is-presented in accordance with the requirernents of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform . Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for f.ederal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selecte'd portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not Intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures, reported on the Schedule are reported on. the accrual basis of
accounting. $uch expenditures are recognized, following the cpst principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited' as to reimbursement.

Note 3 indirect cost rate
Southwesterp-Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION
Nonmohetary-assistance is-reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
corrimodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards "issued by the Comptroller Generalbf the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows'for the year then ended, and the "related^ notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 9; 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in. the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A dericiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be- prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. We identified a deficiency in internal control, described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-001 that we
consider to be a significant deficiency.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about v/hether Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of.laws, regulations, contracts. and:grar;i,t agreements,,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on'the consolidated financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s Response to Findings
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform, limited procedures on
Southwestern Comniunity Services, Inc.'s response to the findings identified in bur audit and
described in the accorhpanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Southwestern
Community Services, [nc.'s response was not subjected to fhe other auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial-statements and, accordingly, we express-no-opinion on the
response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to des.crjbe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that-testing, and not to provide an opinion on the .effectiveness of
the Organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an, audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing ' Standards in i^o.nsidering -the
Organization's internal control .and compliance. Accordingly, this comrriunicatioh is not suitable
for any other purpose.

I iUi^rU/U^,

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
February 9. 2023

39



leone ,
MdJonneil
& Roberts

C£l{TIKII-:i} l?UB[.IC ACCOIJNWrS

WOUl-COKO • NOUTI! CON'\^W

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Gommunity Services. Inc.

Report on Compilance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described' in the 0MB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May 31. 2022.
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2022,

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained \n Government Auditing Standards, issued t)y the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors" Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We. believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficierit and appropriate to
provide' a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s federal programs.



Auditors' Responsibilities.for.the:Audit of.Compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Southwestern, Corpmunity Services, Inc.'s compllarice based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a-high level of assurance but is not absolute .assurance and
therefore is hot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional oniissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of .the. report on compliance, about Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program
as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Governnient
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform, Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regardjng Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc/s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate With those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance vyith a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control- over
compliance, such that there-is a reasonable-possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program vyiH not be prevented,, or detected and corrected,
on a tinnely basis. A significant dericiehcy in internal control over conipliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of corhpliance
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requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit'of Compliance section above and'was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in iriternaf control over compliance. Given these limitations, during bur
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance 'may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed..

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
February 9, 2023
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDlisiGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and - related companies were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. One significant deficiency disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statement's 'are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal CdntrpI Over
FinanciaJ Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncbmpliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies, which would be required
to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards wete 6\sc\o,sed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, ALN 93.568; U.S. Department of
Treasury; Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023; and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas. ALN 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

2022-001 - Lack of accurate and timely reconciliations

Criteria: Internal controls ensuring timely and accurate reconciliations.

Condition: There was a delay in accurate account reconciliations at May 31, 2022.
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Cause: The Organization's internal Gontrol policies and procedures were not followed as
designed.

Effect: Significant and material journal' entries were provided by the client to ensure
accurate financial statements.

Context: Reconciliations were not prepared timely, which resulted in late client-entries
many of which were a result of audit testing and inquiries made by auditor.

Recommendation: Internal control policies and procedures should'be followed throughout
the year to ensure accurate and timely reconciliations.

Views of Responsible Officials: The -Organization acknowledges that internal control
policies relative to certain reconciliations were not followed as established. The
Organization's Leadership and the Fiscal Department Leadershipjs aware that is this riot
acceptable and the expectation is that all fiscal controls and policies are to be followed in a
timely and accurate manner.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported .in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned'Costs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Composition — 2021 -|

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT

SECTOR

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf
Alstead Friendly Meals

Brianna Trombi

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

PRIVATE

SECTOR

Kevin Watterson, Chair/Secretary

Clarke Companies (retired)

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organization

PUBLIC

SECTOR

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

David Edkins

Walpole, NH

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager



SCS Transportation

Key Personnel - NHDOT

Name Job Title Salary

Meg Freeman Chief Financial Officer 95.929.60

Keith Thibault Chief Development Officer 87,796.80

Beth Daniels Chief Operating Officer 71,000.00

Ten Palmer Transportation Director 49,920.00

Terri Curtis VDP Coordinator/Dispatcher 40,123.00



Beth Daniels

Experience

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Operating Officer 03/2016-Present
•  Responsible for all day-to-day program operations of the agency
•  Supervise Program Directors, including WIC, Energy, and Housing Stabilization
•  Ensure that all slate and federal regulations are followed while those in need receive a smooth delivery

of service

Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 - 12/2016
•  Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric-Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,

Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the employment
programs Workplace Success, Work Experience Program, and WIA. •

Workforce Development Director 11/2006 - 10/2008
•  Supervise, direct, coach, and encourage staff of six within four programs
•  Collaborate with agency staff, community members and state contract holders to achieve common goals,

including agency name recognition and program success
•  Perform all SCS Program Director tasks including PPRs and budget management

Families @ Work Employment Specialist 03/2006 - 1 1 /2006
• Managed a caseload of fifty (50) clients throughout the Keene, Claremont, Concord, and Nashua areas
• Worked closely with staff from Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and Southern New Hampshire

Services

•  Gained a strong working knowledge of all SCS programs for referral purposes

Second Start, Concord, NH
Career Development Specialist 1 1 /2004 - 03/2006
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
•  Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
•  Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and leaming styles

Nina's Family Daycare, Swanzey, NH 10/2003 - 1 1/2004
Daycare Provider

•  Responsible for meal planning, payment records, supplies, and activities
•  Acquired CPR & First Aid certification

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
•  Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
•  Completed weekly and monthly progress reports

•  Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes
Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work 05/2000-09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
•  Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services, Immigration & Naturalization

Services, community agencies, and SCS



Education and Training

Results Oriented Management & Accountability (ROMA)

rant Writing Workshop
v^heshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention

Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers
CareerTrack

How to Supervise People
CareerTrack

Career Development Facilitator Training
National Career Development Association
120-hour NCDA (raining

Certified Workforce Development Specialist
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

'nfection Control & Bloodborne Pathogens
. »ome Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services

Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

2016-2017

05/2012

2012

2010-201 1

11/2007

n/2007

09/2005

06/2005

01/2003

05/2002

References Available



TERRI L. DAIGNAULT, VDP COORDINATOR/DISPATCHER

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

VDP Coordinator and Morning Dispatcher
Southwestern Community Services Transportation Sept 2016 - Current

The Volunteer Driver Coordinator is responsible for developing and implementing a program for volunteer drivers within the
Agency's transportation program. Reports directly to the Transportation Services Director this individual will recruit, train,
schedule, and oversee volunteer drivers while working collaborating with other agencies that provide volunteer transportation for
Sullivan County residents.

•  Recruits, screens, trains, supervises, schedules, and evaluates volunteer drivers

•  Identifies and implements resources for training and motivating volunteers

•  Maintains a roster of volunteers willing to provide services.

•  Maintains accurate records, producing monthly and quarterly reports of volunteer activities as requested.

•  Partners with area agencies to coordinate volunteer efforts in the region for optimum efficiency

•  Plans and implements an annual volunteer recognition event.

•  Coordinates the evaluation of the volunteer program including volunteer satisfaction surveys.

•  Handles incoming contacts loathe program and makes home visits as appropriate.

•  Attends meetings and interfaces with other community groups and agencies as appropriate.

•  Participates in the public relations efforts by making presentations to community groups.

•  Other related duties as assigned.

The morning dispatcher directly supports SCS transportation programs. Responsible for a variety of activities including
collecting, compiling, and distributing transportation reports on both public and volunteer transportation services; managing the
Volunteer Driver Program: managing the bus drivers work schedule; coordinating the maintenance and repairs schedule for all
buses. Provide Drug and Alcohol Reasonable Suspicion referral for testing, accidents response and documentation. Also provide
1 dispatching and scheduling for bus transportation.

VDP Coordinator and Morning Dispatcher Feb 2012 - Sept 2016
Community Alliance of Human Services

Directly supported CAHS' transportation programs. Responsible for a variety of activities including collecting, compiling,
and distributing transportation reports on both public and volunteer transportation services; managing the Volunteer Driver
Program: managing the bus drivers work schedule; coordinating the maintenance and repairs schedule for all buses and serve
as a Drug & Alcohol Safety Officer.

Twin State Speedway July 2007 - April 2012

Sales, all aspects from dealing with customers, sales/ticket booths, training, overseeing of all
ticket takers, deposits, record keeping of all deposits and weekly intake, dealing with employees and customers, registrations,
and creating and maintaining websites.

Fleury's Sales Aug 2010 - Feb 2012

Sales, all aspects from dealing with customers, taking payments to selling cars, deposits, record keeping of all deposits and
weekly intake, dealing with employees and customers, registrations, and creating and maintaining websites

Jiffy Mart Aug 2007 - Jan 2010
Worked as Assistant Manager, cashier, stocking, daily paperwork, invoices, ordering and receiving of stock. Training of new
employees, opening and closing of store. Was responsible for daily deposits. Worked and trained in all areas of store, food
preparations.

Hodgdon Sales Aug 1988 - Sept 1996

Worked as cashier, stocking, ordering, and receiving of stock. Trained new employees, payroll, invoicing, billing, answering
phones, dealing with the public. Set up new store fronts. Helped with auctions, scribing and any other duties as needed.



Margaret Freeman

Experience

2000 - Present

Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Financial Officer (2014 - present)
Supervising the quality of accounting and financial reporting of SCS; a Community
Action Agency. Total funding of $18 million; federal, state and local funding sources.
Primary responsibilities include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation
and monitoring of internal controls, reporting financial position to the Board of
Directors, preparation of the annual A-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014)

. Responsible to lead and manage the daily operations of the Fiscal Department of SCS.
Primary duties include budget preparation and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993 -2000

Emile J. Legere Management Corp
Keene, NH

Accountant

Provided bookkeeping for real estate management/development corp. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger, A/P,
A/R, financial statement prep, and audit prep. Leasing Manager of large
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces.

Education

Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH

M.B.A., 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH

B.S., Management, 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science



Keith F. Thibault (603) 719-4208 (work)
kthlbault(^scshclps.org (e-mail)

Skills Summary

Effective "hands-on" manager with proven supervisory experience.
Honest, dependable and self-motivated.
Strong written and oral communicator with PC skills & experience.
Detail oriented, highly organized, flexible and hard-working.
Able to effectively coordinate multiple projects and tasks.

Experience

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire
Housing Director — October, 1993 to December 1998

Director of Housing & Economic Development - January 1999 to June 2001
Development Director - July 2001 to August 2007
chief development officer - September 2007 - Present

Primarily responsible for the acquisition, development and financing of over 450 units of affordable
housing, five Head Start pre-school facilities and 100,000 square feet of commercial space in fourteen
communities in southwestern New Hampshire. Member of the agency's Senior Staff. The chief
development officer position has grown to include all economic, program and philanthropic
development activities within this very dynamic Community Action Agency. The position also includes
the responsibility to represent the organization at numerous community events and on local, state and
regional boards. Highlights as Housing Director included the development of a comprehensive Property
Management component that currently maintains and manages all agency owned real estate; successful
administration of a federal HOPE 3 first time home buyer program in Sullivan County as well as being
the recipient of many awards for the development of historically significant properties.

Rural Housing Improvement, WInchendon, Massachusetts
Director of Home Ownership and Housing Counseling - June 1993 lo October, 1993

This Program Director position consists primarily of the administration of a S500,000 HOPE Hi
Implementation grant, HOME funding for First-time Home Buyers of $250,000, coordination of a State
Finance Authority approved Home Buyer Education course, management of several government
property disposition programs (FDIC, RTC and Fannie Mae), several rehabilitation programs, as well as
all housing counseling activities for the component. Staff supervised include two Housing Developers,
one or more Rehabilitation Specialists, one or more Housing Counselors as well as support staff.

Assistant Director for Administration/Leased Housing - April 1998 to May 1993

Administration of a nearly two thousand household Section 8 Rental Assistance program comprised the
overall scope of this position.' Primary responsibilities included the disbursement of nearly nine million
dollars annually in Housing Assistance Payments to more than eleven hundred landlords, direct day-to-
day supervision of eight staff, liaison work with all other Agency components as well as accurate record
keeping per HUD regulations. Highlights included the creation of Agency Family Self-Sufficiency
Program (FSS) and serving on a statewide Project Coordinating Committee for FSS. 1 also represented
RHI on several committees of our State Housing Association as well as serving on several in-house
committees focusing on employee benefits, performance evaluations and the rewriting of Agency job
descriptions to conform to the American Disabilities Act.



Program Representative/Leased Housing - September 1986 to April 1998

Responsible for the administration and management of a two hundred-plus household caseload. Duties
included initial and annual inspections of all units, rent negotiation and general file maintenance.
Position required an unusually high degree of organizational, interpersonal and technical skills.
Thorough knowledge of market area, Federal Housing Quality Standards and HUD Section 8 regulations
were required.

Education

University of Massachusetts at Amherst
Bachelor of Arts cum laude - 1983

Major; Economics with emphasis on Labor Economics
Minor: Political Science with emphasis on local government
Served a one-year paid internship with the University's Housing Administration, which led to
becoming the Assistant Director of the program during my junior year.
Completed a full semester academic internship serving as an assistant to the Town Manager of
Action, Massachusetts.

Took advanced courses in Economics and Latin through the Liberal Arts Honors Program

Civic and Other Activities

Former Big Brother volunteer, Keene
Current Co-Chair of Heading for Home, our Regional Housing Coalition
Current co-chair of the Southwestern Region Planning Commission's Economic Development
Advisory Committee

Former volunteer at McKerley Health Care Center. Keene
Former Chair of the Board of Directors for the Keene Day Care Center
Current elected Vice Chairman of the Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment.
Current founding board member and Chairperson of the Monadnock Collaborative, a 501(c) (3)
organization formed to provide regional information and supported referral sendees.
Dedicated husband and involved father of three children ages twenty-two, twenty and eight.

References available upon request.


